
ANNUAL  REPORT
2 0 1 1



C O N T E N T S

Committee Profiles	 04

Chairman’s Report	 10

Chief Executive’s Report	 14

Racing Report 	 18

Finance Report	 24

Operations Report	 28

Human Resources Report	 32

Marketing and Communications REPORT	 36

Catering Report	 38

Legends Report	 40

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS	 42

03



C O M M I T E E  P R O F I L E S

ROBERT SCARBOROUGH - CHAIRMAN

Currently involved in substantial real estate developments in Victoria. 
Managing Director Wood Nook Farm Pty Ltd.  

Appointed to Committee – February 2001, Vice Chairman November 
2005 to November 2007, Chairman since November 2007. 

Qualifications and Directorships – Bachelor of Laws (University of 
Melbourne), Private Company Directorships.

Membership and Affiliations – Western Health Foundation Chairman, 
VRC, MRC and Seymour Racing Club.  Commonwealth Golf Club, 
The National Golf Club, Thoroughbred Breeders Victoria, North East 
Thoroughbreds and Thoroughbred Racehorse Owners Association.

Specialty Area and Interests – I am actively involved in all the racing 
aspects of the Club and will continue to strive to present the best racing 
possible to attract the best fields with strong sponsorship support.

Racing Involvement – Principal and Managing Director of Wood Nook 
Farm Pty Ltd,  one of Victoria’s leading thoroughbred breeding farms.   
The farm has bred and raced ten Group 1 winners and has a number of 
promising young horses that can continue the success.

MARTIN RALSTON – JOINT VICE CHAIRMAN

Currently Board Member DWS, Director Hawthorn Football Club and non 
Executive Chairman Transol Corporation.

Appointed to Committee – October 2001, Honorary Treasurer 2001 to 
2007, Vice Chairman from November 2007.

Specialty Area and Interests – Finance Sub Committee. Information 
technology, business planning, breeding and racing thoroughbred horses.

Professional Information – Bachelor of Economics, Fellow of the Institute of 
Management Consultants.

Racing Involvement Previously served on the board of the Thoroughbred 
Racehorse Owner’s Association. Races a number of horses in Australia  
and New Zealand.  

DON CASBOULT – JOINT VICE CHAIRMAN 

Currently Director Casboult Group, Marketing & Management Consultants. 
Former Head of Marketing and Communications, Suncorp Group Personal 
Insurances, responsible for AAMI, GIO, APIA, Shannons and Just Car 
Insurance brands. 

Appointed to Committee – July 2005, Vice Chairman from November 2007.

Other Directorships – AA Insurance Ltd (NZ), Prostate Cancer 
Foundation Australia (Vic & Tas) and private companies.

Specialty Area and Interests – Finance Sub Committee. Business and brand 
strategy, Member services, Marketing, Sponsorship and Media.

Professional Information – University Michigan; Alumnus School of Business 
Administration, Graduate Advanced Management Program INSEAD, France. 
Australian Institute Company Directors. 

Racing Involvement – Through extensive involvement with sports marketing 
and racing sponsorship, Don has developed a keen interest in the Australian 
Racing Industry, he breeds and races horses in Australia and New Zealand 
with friends.   
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BRIAN KRUGER - HONORARY TREASURER 

Currently Chief Financial Officer for Toll Holdings since July 2009. Brian has 
been appointed to the role of Managing Director of  Toll effective 1st January, 
2012.  Previously held a number of executive positions with BlueScope 
Steel, including President North America and Corporate Strategy and Chief 
Financial Officer.  

Appointed to Committee – August 2006, Honorary Treasurer from 
November 2007.   

Specialty and Interests – Finance Sub Committee. 

Professional Information – Bachelor of Economics Monash University.  

Racing Involvement – Has raced a number of horses in recent years, 
including Adelaide Cup winner, Demerger and Sangster Stakes winner, Bel Mer. 

C O M M I T E E  P R O F I L E S

KERRY GILLESPIE 

Currently Director and Consultant Wayne Gillespie Architects Pty Ltd.

Appointed to Committee – July 1997. 

Specialty Area and Interests – Facilities, Racing and Members services. 

Other Directorships – State Library Foundation Board, Board of Living 
Legends, Member of the Victorian Wakeful Club.  

Professional Information – A business partner in her late husband 
Wayne’s architectural firm, Kerry has been involved in the business for  
the past 30 years. She has also managed and worked in marketing, 
hospitality and the fashion industry. Currently working at Sacred Heart 
Mission as a volunteer.

Racing Involvement – Winner Lady in Racing Award 2000. Instigated 
“Behind the  Scenes” tours at Flemington, currently assisting the same at 
MVRC.  Instigated school groups Years 11 & 12 for Maths Assignment on 
racedays. Bred and raced horses successfully for 23 years from foundation 
mare Favours and Do Me A Favour, Mr Feelgood, Flag is Flying and Il 
Favorito.  Share ownership in Harwood Racing Syndicate in the UK  and 
part- owner in the dual Cox Plate winner, Fields of Omagh.

EMMA BOLING 

Currently Emma is an author with the prestigious Penguin publishing house. 
Her first novel Riding High, a story of suspense and murder set in the world 
of international horse racing, was launched with success in 2009, and was 
nominated for the Ned Kelly Award for crime fiction and short listed for the 
Davitt awards for crime fiction. With a background in journalism, Emma writes 
select articles and does guest appearances on radio, notably 3AW and ABC 
774. She is currently working on a second novel.

Appointed to Committee – April 2002.

Specialty Area and Interests – Media, Public Relations and Racing. 

Other Directorships – Private company director. 

Professional Information – Emma has a strong background in media,  
and has worked extensively in the racing industry most significantly 
establishing a boutique breeding operation in Victoria. Emma has a Bachelor 
of Arts (Hons) - University of Melbourne. 

Racing Involvement – Emma has raced many horses in Australia and 
Singapore including Thousand Guineas winner Lady of the Pines, Magic 
Millions Winner Catnipped, Stakes winners Speedy Kids, City Kid, Lord of the 
Pines. She has also bred many race winners including multiple Group One 
winners Hasna and Sound Action. She was the Chairman for fundraising 
for the University of Melbourne Werribee Equine Centre, a member of the 
Thoroughbred Breeders Victoria committee for ten years and founder and 
director of The Pines Stud.

CRAIG OPIE 

Currently Managing Director Paperworld P/L. 

Appointed to Committee – November 2002. 

Other Directorships – Various private companies. Currently Australia Day 
Ambassador, Tourism Victoria Board Member, Committee Brothers 500 
Supporters Group.   

Specialty Area and Interests – Marketing, Catering and Media.  

Professional Information – Bachelor of Business (Acc). 

Racing Involvement – A keen and passionate racegoer with a family history 
at Moonee Valley extending more that 60 years. Has raced many horses over 
the years with mixed success and currently getting much joy from being a 
part owner in Black and Bent.
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C O M M I T E E  P R O F I L E S

JOHN BLIGHT

Currently Director of BDO (NSW-Vic) Pty Ltd. Head of Advisory Services 
and Head of Corporate Finance Services for the Melbourne office.

Appointed to Committee – November 2009. 

Specialty Area and Interests – Chair of the Risk Committee. Corporate 
Finance and Risk.

Other Directorships – Various private companies.

Professional Information – Bachelor of Business (Acc), Fellow of the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants and Fellow of the Financial Services 
Institute of Australasia.

Racing Involvement – John races numerous horses including Rock Kingdom, 
Bank Robber, Here de Angels and Rock the Moment, also having previously 
raced Lord Matthew.

DAVID KOBRITZ

Currently Director Deal Corporation Pty Ltd.

Appointed to Committee – April 2009.

Specialty Area and Interests – Strategic Planning Committee.

Development and Investment – Company with approximately $500M of 
residential and commercial projects under management. Share holder and 
Vice Chairman of A-League Melbourne Soccer team, Melbourne Heart 
Syndicate.

Racing Involvement – David has raced and bred many horses in Australia 
including 1992 Melbourne Cup Winner Subzero and 1994 Golden Slipper 
Winner Danzero. Bred stakes winners in Newport and Rock Kingdom. 
Commercial breeder and owns Musk Creek Farm at Flinders and has 
approx 20 mares on the property.
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C H A I R M A N ’S  R E P O R T

The 2010 / 2011 
season has 
produced many 

highlights at the Moonee 
Valley Racing Club, 
including memorable 
performances by two 
champion racehorses in 
So You Think and Black 
Caviar.  

The financial performance for the season was a 
disappointing result for the Club, with a net loss of 
$1.856M.  The returns from our key commercial 
activities, including sponsorship and non-raceday 
events fell short of budget, and the Club continues 
to operate in a difficult wagering and gaming 
environment.  One key funding agreement that the 
MVRC had in place with Racing Victoria Limited  
was reduced by $400,000 in the 2010 / 2011 financial 
year, with the remaining $310,000 removed for the 
2011 / 2012 financial year. 

With the recent announcement that Tabcorp has 
been awarded the new Victorian Wagering Licence, 
RVL has commenced negotiations with clubs for the 
new industry funding model post 2012.  The MVRC 
is actively participating in these discussions on the 
new funding model, with particular focus on retaining 

the premium night racing prizemoney model, as 
well as capturing our share of revenue through race 
fields legislation as a result of the changing wagering 
landscape.  

“In winning the Cox Plate as  
a 4yo, So You Think became  
the first horse to come back 
and defend his crown after 
winning as a 3yo.” 
Throughout the wagering licence tender process over 
the past two years, there have been commitments 
sought that the Victorian Racing Industry would be 
‘no worse off ’ and that the new funding model would 
require that the Industry remain ‘growing and viable’.  
The MVRC is now seeking assurances from RVL 
that our funding agreement will reflect these two 
commitments. 

I congratulate Tabcorp on their success in winning the 
new Victorian wagering licence.  The racing industry 
has been well served through the joint venture with 
Tabcorp since privatisation, and this new joint venture 
will ensure that the Victorian Racing Industry retains its 
position as a global leader in thoroughbred racing. 

Since the W.S. Cox Plate was first run in 1922, many 
great Australasian thoroughbreds have graced the turf 
at Moonee Valley and won the ‘Race Where Legends 
are Made’.  With So You Think returning to Moonee 
Valley and winning his second W.S. Cox Plate at just 
his 10th race start, he now takes his place amongst the 
very best of our Cox Plate champions. 

In winning the Cox Plate as a 4yo, So You Think 
became the first horse to come back and defend his 
crown after winning as a 3yo.  His win provided owner 
Dató Tan Chin Nam with his third Cox Plate trophy, 
trainer Bart Cummings with his fifth and jockey Steven 
Arnold with his first.   I congratulate all connected with 
this champion on his Cox Plate triumph.   

The 2010 Cox Plate marked the fifth running of the 
race under the Tatts Group sponsorship. I thank the 
Chairman of the Tatts Group, Mr Harry Boon, Chief 
Executive Officer Dick McIlwain, and Bruce Houston, 
Executive General Manager, for their tremendous 
support of the Moonee Valley Racing Club, and of our 
signature race.   

In the 2010 / 2011 season, the MVRC staged 28 
racemeetings, with 18 of these forming our night 
racing season.  Season 14 of night racing was the 
most successful that the Club has conducted, with 
more than $10M distributed through prizemoney, 
SuperVOBIS bonuses, trophies and promotions.  The 
implementation of the Premium Night Racing Strategy 
over the past two seasons has redefined the Moonee 
Valley night racing product, highlighted with our Night 
Racing Season Finale meeting which featured Black 
Caviar winning the Pulse Pharmacy William Reid Stakes 
in front of almost 10,000 racegoers.  

Moonee  Valley staged 23 races throughout the 2010 / 2011  
night racing season that carried prizemoney of 
$100,000 or more, with 11 Black Type races spread 
throughout the season.  The decision to commence 
the season with a feature Group 1 race (Sportingbet 
Manikato Stakes) and conclude the season with a 
feature Group 1 race (Pulse Pharmacy William Reid 
Stakes) created a defined night racing season and 
delivered two of the great moments on the Australian 
turf for the season. 

The win by Hay List in the Group 1 Sportingbet 
Manikato Stakes followed his impressive victory in the 
Group 3 Mitty’s McEwen Stakes and heralded a new 
sprinting star.  I congratulate Terry Davenport and 
his family on the success of Hay List throughout the 
season. 

The Schweppes Stakes on Cox Plate Day continues 
to grow as a highlight of our feature day, and in 2010, 
it was Black Caviar that thrilled the crowd with her 
runaway win in the Group 2 sprint.  It was her win in 
the Moir Stakes that showed for the first time that 
Black Caviar would become the dominant sprinter, 
and world champion that she is now recognised as.  
In defeating a field that included Group 1 winning 
mares Hot Danish and Melito by more than 5 lengths, 
racegoers caught a glimpse of what was to come.  
Since her Moir Stakes win on Cox Plate Day, Black 
Caviar has gone on to win seven Group 1 races against 
the best sprinting horses in Australia. 

Black Caviar’s win in the Group 1 Pulse Pharmacy 
William Reid Stakes was a fitting finale to our 
successful night racing season.  The crowd of almost 
10,000 who came to Moonee Valley on March 25  
was the largest night racing crowd since opening  

Since her Moir Stakes win on Cox Plate Day, Black 
Caviar has gone on to win seven Group 1 races 
against the best sprinting horses in Australia. 

“ ”
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C H A I R M A N ’S  R E P O R T

night, when more than 30,000 turned out to see 
the lights switched on for thoroughbred racing in 
Melbourne.  The atmosphere was electric, and the 
build up to the race was Cox Plate like.  It was 
particularly pleasing to see so many families with 
children on course that night, with many sporting the 
Black Caviar colours in support of our new champion.  
We have always known that great horses will attract 
the crowds, and the public has taken a great interest in 
our champion mare. 

I acknowledge the efforts of trainer Peter Moody, 
jockey Luke Nolen and the owners of Black Caviar 
for making themselves so accessible and willing to 
support the Club, Racing Victoria and the media to 
promote the Black Caviar story.  Our sport needs 
its champions, but we also need the full support of 
those connected with these champion horses to help 
promote thoroughbred racing.  Peter, Luke and the 
owners have been outstanding in helping to promote 
the Black Caviar story to a much wider audience and 
in attracting new people to racing.  

After almost two years of planning, the Moonee Valley 
Master Plan was officially launched in June through an 
extensive consultative process with the community 
and members.

Local residents, traders and MVRC Members were 
invited to attend Open House Information Sessions, 
where they had the opportunity to view the Master 
Plan, speak directly with MVRC Committee and 
executives, as well as the team of consultants who 
have worked on this exciting project.    

The community consultation process extended 
throughout June, and feedback was invited from 
all interested parties on the overall concept of the 
Master Plan, as well as the details contained within 
each of the key elements. 

Since the conclusion of the first stage of the 
community consultation process, the MVRC has 
continued to refine the Master Plan after taking into 
consideration the views of the Members, residents 
and traders.  The key focus of this next stage of the 
process will be to consider what amendments are 
required to the Master Plan, as well as undertaking 
further work in relation to height, density, traffic, public 
transport and community services and infrastructure.  

The MVRC will continue to engage with the Moonee 
Valley City Council to ensure that we meet all 
statutory requirements prior to formally lodging 
the Moonee Valley Master Plan.  The Club will also 

continue to inform and engage with MVRC Members as 
we work our way towards finalising the Moonee Valley 
Master Plan.  

I thank our major sponsors for their continued support 
of Moonee Valley, including The Tatts Group, Foster’s 
Australia, Sportingbet and Pulse Pharmacy.   The Club is 
fortunate to receive tremendous support from so many 
companies in the form of sponsorship, and I thank them 
for their contribution towards our racing events. 

The MVRC enjoys a strong working relationship with 
our media partners, and I thank the members of the 
Victorian Racing Media Association, TVN, SKY Channel, 
Channel Nine, Radio Sport National and the Herald Sun 
for their continued support of racing at Moonee Valley.

The MVRC was saddened by the passing of former 
VRC Board member David Christensen.  David was a 
Life Member of the MVRC and was a great friend of 
our Club.  The Club was also saddened to hear of the 
passing of Doug Bougoure, who trained the 1983 Cox 
Plate champion Strawberry Road. 

I thank my fellow Committee Members for their 
continued support and contribution to the Moonee 
Valley Racing Club.  I also thank our Chief Executive, 
Michael Browell, his Executive Assistant, Brenda 
Hockaday and all our valued staff for their efforts over 
the past season. 

I also thank all Members of the Moonee Valley Racing 
Club for your continued support of the Club and look 
forward to a successful 2011 / 2012 season. 

R A Scarborough – Chairman

After almost two years of planning, the Moonee 
Valley Master Plan was officially launched in 
June through an extensive consultative process 
with the community and members.

“
”
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The 2010 / 2011 
season was a 
year that will be 

remembered for the 
deeds of two champion 
thoroughbreds, So You 
Think and Black Caviar, 
and the great success of 
our night racing program. 

The Committee and staff 
have focused heavily over the past three seasons on 
improving the night racing product at Moonee Valley.  
With the full support of Racing Victoria, the MVRC 
has introduced a wide range of new initiatives that 
have been developed to increase the support and 
participation in night racing by leading trainers, jockeys, 
and horses, as well as improving the quality of the  
on-course experience for members and racegoers. 

The key to the success in improving the quality of the 
racing product throughout the night racing season has 
been the dramatic increase in prizemoney, with over 
$10M distributed across the 18 meetings and 144 

races.  With 23 races carrying prizemoney of $100,000 
or more, with 11 of these Black Type races, owners 
and trainers are now targeting Moonee Valley night 
meetings for their best horses.  The two Group 1 races 
(Manikato Stakes and William Reid Stakes) are key 
highlights on the night racing calendar. 

Night racing attendances were up 21.5% on the  
2009 / 2010 season, with a total of 67,998 attending 
the 18 meetings. A crowd of 9,615 witnessed Black 
Caviar win the Pulse Pharmacy William Reid Stakes – 
the highest night racing attendance since the opening 
night back in 1995.   Admissions revenue increased by 
45%, and dining packages sold increased by 19%. 

Sponsorship of night racing increased by 68% on the 
previous season, with Sportingbet partnering with the 
Club as our Premium Night Racing sponsor. 

The Club conducted a comprehensive review of our 
Membership offer throughout the year, with Members 
participating in a survey to gauge the key benefits 
that they were seeking as part of their Moonee Valley 
Membership package.  

As a result of this survey, and analysing other 
successful sporting club membership models, 
a number of new initiatives and benefits were 
introduced for the 2011 / 2012 season.  The pricing 
structure was changed, with full membership 
decreasing in price from $250 to $230.  In addition 
to the price change, the Club introduced a 
complimentary racebook and beverage offer to 
every member for each meeting that they attend.  

One of the key membership growth opportunities 
for the Club is the 18 – 25 year age group.  Full 
Membership for those aged 18 – 25 is available 
at $150, and with the growing popularity on night 
racing, the Club will focus on growing the number of 
members in this category. 

The review of our membership offer also identified 
an opportunity to develop a new membership 
category for those aged 13 – 17.  This new category 
– Apprentice Member – has been developed to 
appeal to the children of existing members, and to 
engage with them as they develop their interest in 
thoroughbred racing.  

The Members’ event calendar was reviewed,  
with a number of new events developed for the 
2011 / 2012 season.  The Club will develop a range 
of new events for our Apprentice Members as well 
as Members aged 18 – 25. 

The MVRC has set a target of 10,000 Full Members, 
and these enhancements to the membership 
package have been well received by the existing club 
members, and will be heavily promoted to potential 
new members.  

As an interim step, the Club 
has commenced work on 
a new marquee facility – 
Legends Lane. 
With the final harness racing meeting held at 
Moonee Valley in February 2010, consideration was 
given to removing the harness track and landscaping 
the infield area.  With the progress of the Moonee 
Valley Master Plan, this project has been deferred 
until we have a firm indication on whether the 
Master Plan will be adopted. 

Sponsorship of night racing increased by 
68% on the previous season, with Sportingbet 
partnering with the Club as our Premium 
Night Racing sponsor. 
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As an interim step, the Club has commenced work on 
a new marquee facility – Legends Lane.  The Legends 
Lane marquee will be constructed on what was the 
home straight of the harness track, and will be 125 
metres in length.  This new facility will house up to 
1,000 guests on Cox Plate Day, and provide a premium 
corporate marquee hospitality experience.  

A key highlight of the 2010 Tatts Cox Plate was the 
presentation of the Kingston Town Greatness Award 
to Zabeel – the sire of four Cox Plate champions 
(Octagonal 1995, Might and Power 1998, Savabeel 
2004 and Maldivian 2008).  Sir Patrick Hogan joined the 
celebrations for the 2010 Tatts Cox Plate, and accepted 
this prestigious award on behalf of his champion stallion 
and Cambridge Stud.  

The Senior Management team has led the Club 
through a difficult year.   In December, an organisational 
restructure through the Sales and Marketing team 
saw the removal of the Head of Marketing and 
Communications role, with Raechel Lavelle departing 
the Club. 

I thank all members of the Senior Management team, 
including Bruce Clarke (Chief Financial Officer), Brian 
Masters (Operations Manager), David Ploenges (Human 
Resources Manager), Grant Tarrant (Legends Venue 
Manager), Amanda Blythman (Catering Manager) and 
Martin Synan (Racecourse and Facilities Manager) for 
their contribution throughout the year.  A special note 
of appreciation also to Brenda Hockaday (Executive 
Assistant to the CEO and Committee) and Alex Doble 
(Office Manager).  

I thank the MVRC Committee, 
in particular Chairman Mr Bob 
Scarborough, for their support 
throughout the past year. 
David Ploenges resigned from his position as Human 
Resources Manager in July 2011 after more than 7 
years in the racing industry at both Racing Victoria and 
the Moonee Valley Racing Club.  I thank David for his 
contribution to the MVRC. 

The Club is fortunate to have dedicated full-time staff 
as well as a team of part-time and casual staff that 
assist to deliver our racemeetings and non-raceday 
events.  I thank all of the staff that work at Moonee 
Valley for their contribution throughout the year and 
for the high level of service that they provide our 
members, sponsors, raceday patrons and event clients. 

I thank the MVRC Committee, in particular Chairman, 
Mr Bob Scarborough, for their support throughout the 
past year. 

I will acknowledge the great support that the Moonee 
Valley Racing Club receives from the key stakeholders 
of the Victorian Racing Industry.  I thank Rob Hines, 
CEO of Racing Victoria Limited, Paul Bittar, Chief 
Strategy Officer RVL, Dale Monteith, CEO of the 

Victoria Racing Club, Alasdair Robertson, CEO of the 
Melbourne Racing Club and Scott Whiteman, CEO of 
Country Racing Victoria. 

The 2011 / 2012 year promises a number of exciting 
challenges for the Moonee Valley Racing Club.  With 
the progression of the MVRC Master Plan, and 
the new wagering and gaming arrangements that 
commence in August 2012, the Club will be operating 
under significantly different models in a competitive 
environment. 

M J Browell – Chief Executive

The Club is fortunate to have dedicated full-time 
staff as well as a team of part-time and casual 
staff that assist to deliver our racemeetings and 
non-raceday events. 

1716

C hief     E x ecutive       ’s  R eport   



R acing      R eport   

After winning the 2009 Tatts Cox Plate at just his fifth 
racetrack appearance, So You Think missed the 2011 
Autumn Carnival.  His winning return to the track 
in August in the Memsie Stakes was followed with 
dominant victories in the Underwood Stakes and the 
Caulfield Stakes.  Sent out the shortest Cox Plate 
favourite since Lonhro in 2003, So You Think proved 
too strong for Zipping and Whobegotyou in the 
Australasian Weight-For-Age Championship.  

In winning his second W.S. Cox Plate at just his tenth 
race start, So You Think became the first horse to win 
the Cox Plate at three then return and win at four 
years of age. 

Owner Dató Tan Chin Nam travelled to Melbourne 
to watch his champion galloper win back-to-back Tatts 
Cox Plates, and secure his third Cox Plate trophy after 
Saintly’s win in 1996.  

Hall of Fame trainer Bart Cummings was effusive in 
his praise of So You Think, elevating him to the top 
of the list of champion horses that he has trained 
throughout his career. 

The 2011 Tatts Cox Plate was also a defining moment 
in the career of jockey Steven Arnold.  One of 
Australia’s most gifted and respected jockeys, all racing 
fans shared this special moment with Steven as he 
won his first of racing’s major races.  

Following his gallant third placing in the 150th 
Melbourne Cup, So You Think was sold to Coolmore 
and transferred across to Ireland.  Whilst disappointed 
to lose our great Cox Plate champion, the Moonee 
Valley Racing Club sees enormous long-term benefit 
on the world stage for So You Think to be a great 
ambassador for the W.S. Cox Plate, and the racing 
and breeding industries in Australasia.  We have all 

watched on with a tremendous sense of pride as 
So You Think has continued his winning ways across 
in Ireland and England, and look forward to him 
contesting feature races such as the Prix de L’Arc de 
Triomphe in Paris in October.  

In February, the Moonee Valley Racing Club 
announced an important change to the conditions 
of the W.S. Cox Plate with the Club deciding to issue 
invitations to the leading mile and mile-and-a-quarter 
weight-for-age gallopers from around the world.  With 
the growth in international racing, the popularity and 
commercialisation of shuttle stallions, the strength of 
the Australian dollar and the desire to attract a world 
class field to contest our signature race, the Club has 
agreed to fund all expenses for these leading horses 
to travel to Melbourne and race in the W.S. Cox Plate. 

This invitational model has been successfully 
introduced in key racing jurisdictions such as 
Dubai, Hong Kong and Singapore, and the MVRC 
believes that it must be willing to match these 
incentives offered by these clubs if we are to truly 
internationalise the Cox Plate. 

In 2009, the Club introduced the International 
Promotion Fund, which provided a commitment 
to international horses competing in the W.S. Cox 
Plate that they would be guaranteed prizemoney of 
$100,000 should they not finish in the first 8 places.  
In 2010, leading Macau galloper Luen Yat Forever 
competed throughout the Victorian Spring Racing 
Carnival, finishing 4th beaten less than 1 length in his 
first-up run in the Toorak Hcp before disappointing 
in the Cox Plate when last of ten runners.  His 
subsequent run in the Emirate Stakes at Flemington 
when 4th beaten 0.3 lengths justified his credentials as 
a worthy Group 1 contender.   

The MVRC will continue to offer the International 
Promotion Fund guarantee for international horses 
wishing to compete in the W.S. Cox Plate that do not 
meet the requirements to qualify for an invitation.  

The 2010 Cox Plate Day meeting was further 
enhanced by the effortless win of Black Caviar in the 
Group 2 Schweppes Moir Stakes over 1200 metres.  
The Moir Stakes victory was the seventh consecutive 
win by Black Caviar, and her 5.5 length margin was 

The 2010  Victorian Spring Racing Carnival delivered two outstanding 
thoroughbreds that thrilled racegoers.  So You Think and Black Caviar both 
stamped themselves as world-class gallopers with their exploits on the 
racetrack, with So You Think undefeated at weight-for-age, and Black Caviar 
continuing her unbeaten winning sequence.
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confirmation that she was now ready to step up to 
Group 1 racing.  Following her Moir Stakes win, Black 
Caviar won the Group 1 Patinack Stakes, then returned 
for the Melbourne Festival of Racing in the Autumn 
with a first-up win in the Group 1 Lightning Stakes. Her 
win in the Group 1 Newmarket Hcp under handicap 
conditions was one of the greatest performances of a 
thoroughbred in Australia, when she carried 58kgs and 
won by 3 lengths. 

This Newmarket Hcp win was followed by her 
appearance at Moonee Valley in the Group 1 Pulse 
Pharmacy William Reid Stakes over 1200 metres on 25 
March 2011. A crowd of almost 10,000 fans turned up at 
Moonee Valley to see racing’s brightest star extend her 
winning sequence to 11.  

Black Caviar continued on to win the Group 1 T J Smith 
at Randwick, and then travelled to Brisbane to win  
the Group 1 BTC Cup.  Black Caviar finished the  
2010 / 2011 undefeated after 13 career starts with 
prizemoney of almost $3.5M.  Of these 13 wins, Black 
Caviar has won four races at Moonee Valley, including 
the Crockett Stakes (Gr 2), the Australia Stakes (Gr 2), 
the Moir Stakes (Gr 2) and the William Reid Stakes (Gr 1). 

The win of Black Caviar in the William Reid Stakes was 
the highlight of the 2010 / 2011 night racing season, but 
there were a number of outstanding performances that 
made Season 14 the most successful night racing season 
staged by the Moonee Valley Racing Club. 

The season commenced on September 24, with 18 
racemeetings and 144 races schedules, and over $10M 
on offer.  

The Club introduced a number of programming changes 
for the 2010 / 2011 Night Racing Season, including the 
move of the Sportingbet Manikato Stakes to our Grand 
Final Eve meeting to launch the night racing season, and 
the Pulse Pharmacy William Reid Stakes to the final night 
of the season. With these changes, the Club was able 
to build a defined night racing season around our two 
Group 1 sprint races that bookended the season. 

The Group 1 Sportingbet Manikato Stakes was won in 
impressive style by Hay List, with trainer John McNair 
and jockey Glyn Schofield also combining to win the 
Mitty’s McEwen Stakes en route to the Group 1 feature. 

In addition to the two Group 1 races, the MVRC staged 
a further 10 Black Type races across the night season.  In 
total, there were 23 races that carried prizemoney of 
$100,000 or more.   

The Club launched the Premium Industry Rewards 
Program, where trainers and jockeys had the 
opportunity to win a selection of great prizes based 
on their prizemoney tally across the 18 night meetings.  
Peter Moody secured the top prize in the Trainers 
category - the $134,000 GL350 Mercedes-Benz from 3 
Point Motors.  His last runner for the season was Black 
Caviar in the Pulse Pharmacy William Reid Stakes, and 
her win saw his prizemoney go past the magical $1M 
barrier, landing Peter the richest prize ever offered to a 
trainer in Australia.  

With Luke Nolen in the saddle, Black Caviar’s win also 
took his prizemoney tally past the $1M mark, and for his 
efforts, the Nolen family were rewarded with a $33,500 
Bang & Olufsen 55 inch television.   

A highlight of Season 14 was the introduction of the 
Essendon Mazda 55 Second Challenge.  Each night 
meeting featured a heat of this series (18 heats in total), 
with races run over the new distance of 955 metres.  
Total prizemoney for the Essendon Mazda 55 Second 
Challenge was $990,000, with each race carrying 
$55,000.  

The prize for the trainer of the fastest horse across the 
18 heats was a $55,000 Mazda CX9 Classic donated by 
Essendon Mazda, and this was won by Bendigo trainer 
Peter Boynton after La Bella Roo posted the fastest 
time of 55:48 on New Year’s Eve.  Jockey Jake Noonan 
secured the jockey’s prize for the 55 Second Challenge – 
a $10,000 cheque from Essendon Mazda.   The trainers 
threw their support behind the 55 Second Challenge, 
with a total of 160 horses contesting this series.  

The support from trainers and jockeys has also 
increased in line with the Premium Night Racing strategy 
and the increase in prizemoney on offer, with a total  
of 304 trainers and 98 jockeys participating in the  
2010 / 2011 Night Racing Season. 

Congratulations to trainer Peter Moody on winning  
the Moonee Valley Trainers Premiership for season  
2010 / 2012.  Peter trained 24 winners at Moonee Valley 
for the season, with feature wins including the Group 1 
William Reid Stakes (Black Caviar), Group 2 Moir Stakes 
(Black Caviar), Group 2 Moonee Valley Fillies Classic 
(Lights of Heaven), Listed Typhoon Tracy Stakes (Miss Gai 
Flyer) and the Listed St Albans Stakes (Golden Archer). 

Luke Nolen continued his good form at Moonee Valley 
throughout the year, winning the Jockeys Premiership 
with 22 wins from 108 rides.  

Prizemoney
Moonee Valley Racing Club made the strategic 
decision to reduce its allocated race dates to 28 
meetings in Season 2010 / 2011 – down from 32 
meetings in 2009 / 2010. Prizemoney paid for the 
year totalled $18,522,450, down $2,246,300 (-10.8%) 
on 2009 / 2010 levels.  The MVRC contributed 
$2,639,180 towards prizemoney in 2010/2011 
(+5.7%) on 2009 / 2010 levels.

The Club also made other payments to owners 
totalling $383,805 for items such as trophies and 
promotional giveaways to industry participants.

Attendances
A total of 126,917 attended the Club’s 28 race 
meetings over 2010/2011 season, (-0.6%) against 
2009 / 2010 in which the Club hosted 32 meetings. 
Average attendance per meeting was up 11.9% on 
the season prior.  

Tatts Cox Plate 
Attendances
The 2010 Tatts Cox Plate attracted a crowd of 31,546 
against 31,780 in 2009.

Wagering 
Total betting turnover for the year was down 20.9% 
to $157.1 million. Total off course turnover was down 
20.3% to $100.4 million and total on-course turnover 
was down 12.3% to $15.1 million. 

Average on-course turnover was up 0.2% over the 
season and the night average turnover was up 6.5% 
on 2009/2010. 

Total bookmaker turnover was down 24.9% for 
the year to $41.5 million, with average bookmaker 
turnover down 14.2%.
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	RA CE	HORSE	TRAINER	O   WNERS	 JOCKEY

Gr 1	 W.S. Cox Plate	 So You Think (NZ)	 Bart Cummings	 Dato’ Tan Chin Nam 	 Steven Arnold 
				    & Tunku Ahmad Yahaya

Gr 1	 Manikato Stakes	 Hay List	 John McNair	 T J Davenport, Mrs E A Davenport, 	 Glyn Schofield 
				    Miss J Davenport, Miss K M 	  
				    Davenport & P A Davenport

Gr 1	 William Reid Stakes	 Black Caviar	 Peter Moody	 G J & Mrs K J Wilkie, 	 Luke Nolen 
				    Werrett Bloodstock P/L Synd  
				    (Mgr: N Werrett), C &  
				    Mrs J Madden, P Hawkes,  
				    D M & Mrs J Taylor

Gr 2	 Feehan Stakes	 Whobegotyou	 Mark Kavanagh	 L E Eales & Mrs P A Eales 	 Michael Rodd

Gr 2	 Moonee Valley Gold Cup	 Precedence (NZ)	 Bart Cummings	 Dato Tan Chin Nam, 	 Blake Shinn 
				    Sir Patrick Hogan,The Dowager  
				    Duchess Of Bedford & B A Schroder

Gr 2	 MV Vase	 Rekindled Interest	 Jim Conlan	 Pinecliff Racing (Mgr: J B Munz)	 Dwayne Dunn

Gr 2	 Bill Stutt Stakes	 Hollowlea	 Terry & 	 K A J & Mrs E Peach, 	 Nicholas Hall		
			   Karina O’Sullivan	 T & Mrs R S O’Sullivan

Gr 2	 Stanley Wootton Stakes	 Whitefriars	 Rick Worthington	 R T & Mrs D M	 Jim Cassidy 
				    Maclean-Worthington,  
				    R & Mrs D Smyth-Kirk

Gr 2	 Alister Clark Stakes	 Domesky	 Michael Kent	 E R Campbell, P E Campbell, 	 Craig Williams 
				    Miss S L Freer, N R Sonenberg  
				    & B W Lonsdale

Gr 2	 Stocks Stakes	 Avienus	 Mark Webb	 R A Anderson, P G D Maloney, 	 Craig Williams 
				    D James, Ms L J Webb, R M Fields,  
				    Ms S M White, Mrs M P Fields,  
				    H Sturzaker, C Sturzaker,  
				    Beauty Mate (Mgr: P Maloney)

Gr 2	 Moir Stakes	 Black Caviar	 Peter Moody	 G J & Mrs K J Wilkie, Werrett	 Luke Nolen 
				    Bloodstock P/L Synd  
				    (Mgr: N Werrett), C & Mrs J Madden,  
				    P Hawkes, D M & Mrs J Taylor

Gr 2	 Crystal Mile	 Sound Journey	 Mark Kavanagh	 P Sherlock, N Forster, N Mortlock, 	 Michael Rodd 
				    Fazza Racing (Mgr: M Mirabelli),  
				    D Cavuoto, M Howard, R Nudo,  
				    B P Murray, E Murray & Marisa Synd  
				    (Mgr: J Anastasiu)

Gr 2	 Sunline Stks	 Nakaaya	 Mick Price	 Greenwich Stud Syndicate	 Craig Newitt 
				    (Mgr: G Perry)

Gr 2	 MV Fillies Classic	 Lights of Heaven (NZ)	 Peter Moody	 Mrs J M Wanless	 Luke Nolen

Gr 3	 McEwen Stakes	 Hay List	 John McNair	 T J Davenport, Mrs E A Davenport, 	 Glyn Schofield 
				    Miss J Davenport, Miss K M  
				    Davenport & P A Davenport

Gr 3	 Red Anchor Stakes	 That’s Not It	 Mathew Ellerton 	 D R Z Syndicate, L H Selwood, 	 Chris Symons		
			   & Simon Zahra	 J Bono, S T Browney, A W Bruhn,  
				    L I Williams, N P Kennelly &  
				    Elclashans Racing Syndicate

Gr 3	 Tesio Stakes	 Lady Lynette	 David & Scott Brunton	 Mrs J M Brunton, Mrs D K Hermans, 	 Nicholas Hall 
				    G Mitchell, Mrs J M & B J Triffitt,  
				    Ms L L Palmen, S K  Brunton & Miss R Svensson

Gr 3	 Champagne Stakes	 Lone Rock	 Robert Smerdon	 A S Bongiorno & J A Bongiorno 	 Glen Boss

Gr 3	 JRA Cup	 Precedence (NZ)	 Bart Cummings	 Dató Tan Chin Nam, 	 Blake Shinn 
				    Sir Patrick Hogan, 
				    The Dowager Duchess Of Bedford  
				    & B A Schroder

Listed	 William Crockett Stakes	 Dutchy’s Lass	 Shaun Dwyer	 R S Willis & M G Buys	 Michael Rodd

Listed	 Mitchell McKenzie Stakes	 Anacheeva	 Peter Moody	 Rockmount Syndicate 	 Luke Nolen 
				    (Mgrs: G Guest, J Kewish  
				    & D Murphy)

Listed	 Alexandra Stakes	 Zubbaya	 Lee Freedman	 Sheikh Mohammed	 Michael Walker

Listed	 St Albans Stakes	 Golden Archer	 Peter Moody	 21st Century Trade Group (No.5) 	 Luke Nolen 
				    P/L Syndicate (Mgr: J Savaglia)

Listed	 Typhoon Tracy Stakes	 Miss Gai Flyer	 Peter Moody	 Sunlands Produce Pty Ltd Syndicate	 Luke Nolen 
				    (Mgr: G W Pfeiler)

MOONEE VALLEY BLACK TYPE RACES 2010 – 2011 SEASON

trainer Name	 1st	 1DH	 2nd	 2DH	 3rd	 3DH	S tarters	S rate	
Peter G Moody	 24	 0	 12	 0	 8	 0	 90	 0.26
Mick Price	 10	 0	 6	 0	 10	 0	 56	 0.17
Robert Smerdon	 9	 0	 13	 0	 6	 0	 79	 0.11
Colin & Cindy Alderson	 9	 0	 3	 0	 1	 0	 37	 0.24
Mark Kavanagh	 8	 0	 3	 0	 4	 0	 24	 0.33
Robbie Griffiths	 7	 0	 3	 0	 5	 0	 54	 0.12
Danny O’Brien	 6	 0	 5	 0	 3	 0	 38	 0.15
Dennis O’Leary	 6	 0	 1	 0	 1	 0	 10	 0.60
Lee Freedman	 5	 0	 11	 0	 11	 0	 68	 0.07
David Hayes	 5	 0	 6	 0	 6	 0	 74	 0.06

TRAINER’S PREMIERSHIP

MOONEE VALLEY’S TRAINER & JOCKEY PREMIERSHIPs

Jockey Name	 1st	 1DH	 2nd	 2DH	 3rd	 3DH	S tarters	S rate	
Luke Nolen	 22	 0	 13	 0	 9	 0	 108	 0.20
Craig Newitt	 18	 0	 12	 0	 16	 0	 123	 0.14
Damien Oliver	 15	 0	 16	 0	 13	 0	 114	 0.13
Ben Melham	 13	 0	 13	 0	 15	 0	 88	 0.14
Dwayne Dunn	 13	 0	 9	 0	 10	 1	 85	 0.15
Glen Boss		 12	 0	 8	 0	 8	 0	 74	 0.16
Jake Noonan (a)	 8	 0	 10	 0	 11	 1	 77	 0.10
Nicholas Hall	 8	 0	 9	 0	 4	 0	 50	 0.16
Michael Rodd	 7	 0	 6	 0	 9	 0	 46	 0.15
Craig Williams	 7	 0	 5	 0	 3	 0	 60	 0.11

JOCKEY’S PREMIERSHIP

Trainer Name	 1st	 1DH	 2nd	 2DH	 3rd	 3DH	S tarters	S rate	 Prize Money
Peter G Moody	 16	 0	 6	 0	 6	 0	 53	 0.30	 1,058,849
Robert Smerdon	 6	 0	 8	 0	 1	 0	 35	 0.17	 397,374
Colin & Cindy Alderson	 6	 0	 1	 0	 1	 0	 21	 0.28	 257,705
Robbie Griffiths	 6	 0	 1	 0	 2	 0	 30	 0.20	 188,975
David Hayes	 5	 0	 5	 0	 3	 0	 41	 0.12	 245,066
Mark Kavanagh	 5	 0	 1	 0	 1	 0	 11	 0.45	 235,861
Dennis O’Leary	 5	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 5	 1	 142,152
Mick Price	 4	 0	 5	 0	 8	 0	 33	 0.12	 466,784
Danny O’Brien	 4	 0	 4	 0	 2	 0	 23	 0.17	 175,501
Tony Vasil		 4	 0	 2	 0	 1	 0	 15	 0.26	 178,233

Trainer’s NIGHT PREMIERSHIP 

Jockey Name	 1st	 1DH	 2nd	 2DH	 3rd	 3DH	S tarters	S rate	 Prize Money
Luke Nolen	 16	 0	 8	 0	 8	 0	 69	 0.23	 1,047,288
Damien Oliver	 11	 0	 12	 0	 12	 0	 77	 0.14	 600,143
Dwayne Dunn	 10	 0	 8	 0	 8	 1	 57	 0.17	 512,067
Craig Newitt	 10	 0	 6	 0	 13	 0	 66	 0.15	 720,101
Ben Melham	 8	 0	 7	 0	 11	 0	 59	 0.13	 387,347
Glen Boss		 8	 0	 7	 0	 5	 0	 49	 0.16	 425,115
Nicholas Hall	 6	 0	 6	 0	 1	 0	 30	 0.20	 246,337
Jake Noonan	 5	 0	 6	 0	 7	 1	 51	 0.09	 321,071
Craig Williams	 5	 0	 5	 0	 2	 0	 35	 0.14	 358,211
Danny Nikolic	 5	 0	 3	 0	 4	 1	 36	 0.13	 288,566

jockey’s NIGHT PREMIERSHIP 
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Operating 
performance
Moonee Valley Racing Club 
recorded an operating loss 
of $1,856,000 for the year 
to 31 July, 2011. 

Total revenues were down 
$3,613,000 (7.0%) on 
2009 / 2010. 

The most significant factor in this decrease was a 
$2,247,000 (12.4%) reduction in the level of prizemoney 
funding received via the industry distribution scheme. 
This was in line with the reduced number of meetings 
held at the Club during the year, down from 32 to 28. 
A corresponding saving is recorded in the prizemoney 
expense line.

Other industry funding received during the year reduced 
by $445,000 (18.5%).

Last year’s revenue figures also included harness racing 
income of $764,000 for the period to 6 February, 2010, 
the date the final harness meeting was conducted at  
the Club.

Raceday catering revenues were up $728,000 (11.5%), 
driven mainly by improved corporate marquee and 
enclosure bookings for the 2010 Cox Plate, however 
non-raceday catering and gaming revenues were down 
by $317,000 (3.3%). Nomination and acceptance fees 
were down $172,000 and betting commissions were 
down $120,000 on last year.

In total, expenses were down $2,465,000 (4.8%) on the 
previous year.

Prizemoney paid during the year was down $2,247,000 
(10.8%) on last year, purely as a result of the reduced 
number of meetings conducted during the year. In total, 
the Club contributed $2,639,000 towards prizemoney 
over and above the prizemoney minimum funding 
received via the industry distribution scheme. This 
was consistent with the Club’s contribution towards 
prizemoney the previous year. The Club also paid out an 
extra $199,000 in other returns to industry stakeholders, 
including the cost of the successful industry rewards 
promotions held during the year.

As indicated above, harness racing activities ceased in the 
2009 / 2010 year, and as such, year-on-year cost savings 
of $475,000 were reported. Last year’s expenses also 

included one-off charges of $361,000 for scrapped 
assets and $279,000 for master plan expenses which 
were not repeated in the current year. Depreciation 
charges rose $229,000 following the large capital 
expenditure program completed towards the end  
of 2009 / 2010.

Profits from the Club’s gaming venue, Legends, 
were down $179,000 (20.6%) on the previous 
year. Changes to the taxation structure for gaming 
machine revenues come into force in August, 
2012, and it is expected that this will improve the 
contribution of this business from the 2012 / 2013 
season onwards. 

Profits from the Club’s non-raceday catering business, 
Valley Events, were down $251,000 (16.0%) on the 
previous year. Several factors have contributed to 
this disappointing result, including smaller spends 
by corporate clients in the post-GFC environment, 
increased price competiveness in the marketplace, 
and higher input costs, particularly in the areas  
of food and casual labour. The 2011 / 2012 season  
will see a renewed focus in growing this area of  
the business.

Strong Balance Sheet
The Club continues to boast a strong balance sheet, 
with net assets of $94.29 million. Cash reserves at  
31 July, 2011 totalled $1.97 million, with a further 
$1.31 million held in interest bearing securities. 
Operating activities generated $1.0 million in cash 
during the year.

The Club has no external borrowings.

Investments
Following a review of the carrying value of its 
investments, the Club wrote down its investment 
in Sport 927 by $1,069,000 during the year. The 
valuation adopted is based on the net asset value of 
Sport 927, adjusted for management’s estimation of 
the value of its radio licenses at balance date. 

Major projects
The Club spent $2.49 million on capital projects 
during the year. 

Expenditure in relation to the securing of planning 
permission for the Club’s Master Plan project 
has been capitalised, in accordance with current 
accounting standards. As at balance date,  
$1.11 million of costs relating to this project is  
held in Capital Work in Progress.

Major works during the year included upgrades to 
the Inner Circle, Members’ Dining Room and Valley 
View. New plastic running rails were installed and the 
mounting yard was resurfaced. 

Projects to improve the Club’s Point of Sale system 
and casual rostering system were also completed 
during the year. 

All capital expenditure during the year was funded 
entirely out of cash reserves.
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Committee Attendances
Committee attendance at meetings during the year is detailed below:

		

	 Eligible	 Attended

Committee

Mr RA Scarborough	 11	 10

Mr MK Ralston	 11	 8

Mr DC Casboult 	 11	 11

Mr BG Kruger	 11	 8

Mrs KT Gillespie	 11	 9

Ms E Boling	 11	 9

Mr CA Opie	 11	 10

Mr DH Kobritz 	 11	 11

Mr J Blight 	 11	 10

Mr MJ Browell 	 11	 11

		

Finance Sub-Committee

Mr RA Scarborough	 12	 11

Mr MK Ralston	 12	 9

Mr DC Casboult	 12	 12

Mr BG Kruger	 12	 11

Mr MJ Browell 	 12	 12

		

Risk Management Sub-Committee		

Mr RA Scarborough	 4	 2

Mr MJ Browell	 4	 4

Mr J Blight 	 4	 3

F inance       R eport   
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Environment  
2010 National 
savewater! 
awards®
At the 2010 National 
savewater! awards® 
announced in Sydney on 
the 12 November 2010 
the Moonee Valley Racing 

Club was awarded the “Large Business” award and the 
“Overall Award for Excellence”.

In the large business category we had been short listed 
alongside Woolworths Ltd and the Murray Goulburn 
Co-Operative.  When announcing the MVRC as the 
Large Business award winner the judges commented:

“The Moonee Valley Racing Club has adopted an  
holistic approach to water and energy saving with 
projects that have seen a large investment in time 
and money and a substantial internal and external 
communication program.  With the valuable media 
coverage already achieved and community awareness 
raised, the club’s work has significant potential to 
influence improved practices in both the racing industry 
and the general public.”

Having been awarded the Large Business award we 
were then pitted against all other category winners 
including the Product Innovation and Photographic 
categories which were open to international entries.  
In all some 1200 entries were evaluated across 7 
categories from 38 countries with the Moonee Valley 
Racing Club being awarded the “Overall Award for 
Excellence”.  

Importantly these awards recognise the Club’s 
commitment to reducing water consumption,  
associated costs and the environmental effects  
including greenhouse emissions. 

Being recognised as a national leader with such 
prestigious awards greatly enhances the Club’s 
reputation.  The Club’s achievement has been highlighted 
by City West Water and the Savewater! Alliance through 
many advertisements and publication covers along with 
big screen advertising in Federation Square.  

Recycling

In conjunction with the Packaging Stewards Forum the 
Club has also embarked upon a recycling strategy to 
segregate reusable materials from mainstream waste.  
This strategy further highlights the Club’s commitment 
to becoming an environmentally responsible 
organisation.

Tatts Cox Plate Day 
Celebrate Sensibly
Working in conjunction with Racing Victoria and all 
other Victorian Race clubs, and the Club’s security 
provider Security International Services, the Club 
implemented a strategy for the management of 
Responsible Service of Alcohol (RSA) for the 2010 
Tatts Cox Plate.  The strategy entitled “Celebrate 
Sensibly” was supported by Victoria Police and Liquor 
Licensing Victoria.

Representatives of  Vic Roads were present on Tatts 
Cox Plate Day to verify identification presented 
prior to young patrons being wrist banded to enable 
alcohol consumption. 

A proactive approach to crowd control incidents 
occurred on Cox Plate Day with security, in 
conjunction with the Victoria Police, playing an  
integral role in providing an active deterrent to 
unacceptable behaviour.

The Communications Centre was again enacted 
for the 2010 Tatts Cox Plate with representatives 
from the Victoria Police, Ambulance Victoria, St John, 
Security International Services, and Cleanevent 
engaged. The enactment of the Communications 
Centre resulted in direct and timely resolution of 
issues that arose throughout the course of the day.

Post Cox Plate debrief sessions with all the 
Emergency Services who were associated with the 
event congratulated the Club on the co-ordination 
and delivery of all risk management responsibilities.

Risk Management and 
Compliance
The Manager – Operations and Assistant Operations 
Manager have continued to represent the Club at 
industry forums in the areas of Liquor Licensing, Risk 
Management, OH&S and Compliance. 

The Club’s Risk and Compliance Sub Committee 
(R&CSC) met on four occasions this season. The 
recording of risk; assessments and rectification of 
identified risks; and the Club’s legal liability in relation 
to risk were overseen by the R&CSC during these 
sessions.

Prior to the Tatts Cox Plate, a refresher briefing of  
the Club’s Emergency Management Plan was held  
for casual and permanent staff with a separate 
evacuation drill held for Legends. This was timed to 
ensure the correct procedure to check and clear the 
venue in the event of an emergency was understood 
by all employees.

 Community & Government
The Club has continued a proactive engagement with 
all levels of government and the wider community to 
ensure it is represented at appropriate forums and is 
advocating issues that are relevant to its interests and 
strategic direction.

During the year the Manager - Operations 
represented the Club as a Director of  “Leadwest”, 
a regional leadership and advocacy body for 
Melbourne’s western suburbs.

The Club has also continued to foster healthy working 
relationships with Victoria Police, Liquor Licensing 
Victoria, Local Council and the EPA to ensure 
compliance with key legislation and licensing.
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Contract Management
During the year most key supply contracts were 
reviewed against the Club’s current requirements and 
market standards and renegotiated to ensure the Club 
is obtaining its requirements at market competitive costs.

As an example a new partnership was negotiated with 
Sharp Australia for photocopying and printing services.  
The new arrangement enables a technology refresh 
throughout the Club and is set to save around $90,000 
per annum.

Racetrack & Facilities
Following on from last season’s extensive refurbishment 
program the Facilities team continues to manage 
upgrades within a limited budget.  Through a strategic 
alliance with Morton’s Hire (our Cox Plate marquee 
partner) considerable new furniture has been obtained 
and deployed throughout the complex.

Similarly an arrangement with TEAC has enabled an 
extensive upgrade of television monitors throughout 
the complex. 

To satisfy legislative requirements Back Flow prevention 
valves were installed at each of the inlet valves into the 
Club’s ringed water main system.  These were installed 
by contractors and have since been inspected and 
approved by City West Water engineers.

Racetrack rated Good or 
Dead for 90% of meetings
The racetrack continued to perform well throughout 
the heavy racing program across the season.

The challenges faced by such a heavy racing program 
and the efforts to present the track in the best 
possible condition for racing by Racecourse and 
Facilities Manager Marty Synan, Track Foreman Tony 
Salisbury and Club staff were recognised nationally.  At 
the Australian Racecourse Managers Conference in 
July the Club was awarded the leading Metropolitan 
Racecourse Manager’s award for 2010 / 2011.

Finally I would like to take this opportunity to 
congratulate the entire Operations Team for creating 
these outstanding results, sometimes from very  
adverse conditions.

Rating	 Meetings	 Percentage

Fast	 0	 0

Good	 17	 61%

Dead	 8	 29%

Slow	 2	 7%

Heavy	 1	 4%

	D /N/T	R ail	 Penetrometer	R ating

Saturday, 21 August 2010	 Day	 4m	 5.36	 Slow7/Slow6

Saturday, 11 September 2010	 Day	 True	 5.02	 Slow6/Dead5

Friday, 24 September 2010	 Night	 3m	 4.63	 Dead4/Good3

Friday, 1 October 2010	 Night	 7m	 4.46	 Good3

Saturday, 23 October 2010	 Day	 True	 4.61	 Dead4  

Friday, 29 October 2010	 Night	 4m	 4.69	 Good3

Friday, 12 November 2010	 Night	 7m	 4.48	 Good3/Dead4

Saturday, 20 November 2010	 Day	 True	 4.36	 Good3

Friday, 26 November 2010	 Night	 1m	 4.53	 Dead4/Dead5

Friday, 3 December 2010	 Night	 3m	 4.61	 Dead4/Good3

Friday, 10 December 2010	 Night	 5m	 4.69	 Dead4/Good3

Sunday, 12 December 2010	 Twilight	 7m	 4.53	 Dead4

Friday, 17 December 2010	 Night	 True	 4.47	 Good3

Friday, 31 December 2010	 Night	 2m	 4.58	 Good3

Friday, 14 January 2011	 Night	 5m	 4.95	 Slow6/Dead5

Friday, 28 January 2011	 Night	 True	 4.47	 Good3

Friday, 4 February 2011	 Night	 True	 4.49	 Good3/Heavy8

Friday, 11 February 2011	 Night	 4m	 4.39	 Good3/Dead4

Friday, 18 February 2011	 Night	 7m	 4.63	 Dead4/Dead5

Friday, 25 February 2011	 Night	 True	 4.45	 Good3

Friday, 4 March 2011	 Night	 3m	 4.38	 Good3

Monday, 14 March 2011	 Day/PH	 7m	 4.72	 Good3

Friday, 18 March 2011	 Night	 True	 4.66	 Dead4/Good3

Friday, 25 March 2011	 Night	 2m	 4.74	 Dead4/Good3

Saturday, 2 April 2011	 Day	 5m	 4.57	 Dead4

Wednesday, 8 June 2011	 Day	 7m	 5.66	 Heavy8

Saturday, 18 June 2011	 Day	 True	 5.36	 Slow7/Slow6

Saturday, 2 July 2011	 Day	 3m	 4.81	 Dead5/Dead4

O perations         R eport   

MOONEE VALLEY TRACK
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A long-term weakness in the HR function at Moonee 
Valley for a number of years has been an antiquated 
payroll and rostering system.  Following lengthy internal 
analysis, the Club made the decision to implement 
Inzenius - a full end-to-end rostering, time and 
attendance and payroll software package.  This software 
package was selected as the right fit for the various 
business needs of MVRC.  This includes the diverse 
requirements between raceday operational needs, 
catering for both raceday and non-raceday, and the 
requirements of permanent and casual workforce  
that operate throughout the various departments  
at the Club, including our gaming venue Moonee  
Valley Legends. 

Inzenius provides the Club with the ability to manage 
our workforce of almost 2,000 full-time and part-time 
staff,  recognising the skill set of each staff member and 
allocating our casual workforce to the roles that they 
are suited to perform.  Inzenius, through the time and 
attendance function, will accurately record the shift 
duration and allow for greater control over one of our 
most significant operational expenses – our salaries 
and wages. Throughout the early implementation 

phase, efficiencies have been identified that will deliver 
a significant financial benefit to the Club. 

A major objective for the Club through this project 
was a new, modern and robust payroll system that 
could meet the complexities associated with our 
various payroll requirements.  Whilst it has been a 
time consuming and difficult process to fully tailor the 
payroll function of Inzenius to meet all of the needs of 
the Club, the year ahead will see the full benefit of this 
new system. 

Following the implementation, the Club undertook 
a comprehensive review of our remuneration 
framework, through a process of benchmarking the 
various roles throughout the administration, sales, 
catering and track and grounds departments. This 
remuneration benchmarking project was undertaken 
to ensure that the MVRC was competitive in regards 
to the level of remuneration offered when compared 
to the wider employment marketplace, but also to 
develop a level of equity across the various roles 
within the organisation in line with the various skill sets 
required to perform each role.  

The Human Resources department has undertaken a number of vital 
projects throughout the 2010 / 2011 year, with the benefits of these 
projects to serve the Club well in coming years.

The findings of this remuneration benchmarking 
project identified a number of roles within the 
MVRC organisational structure that required minor 
adjustments, but across the board, the Club was seen 
to be remunerating our staff in line with current 
market rates.

The Club also developed a sales incentive plan 
model for the sales staff across sponsorship, raceday 
corporate hospitality and non-raceday events.  This 
sales incentive plan has been designed to provide these 
sales staff with an incentive based component to their 
remuneration package based on agreed targets that 
are aligned with the needs of the MVRC. 

Through this sales incentive plan, and the benchmarking 
of the remuneration packages for our staff, the Club 
aims to continue to attract and retain quality staff 
across all business departments.

In July 2011, MVRC Human Resources Manager David 
Ploenges departed the Club to seek new challenges in 
the HR field.  David worked in the racing industry for 7 
years, the last three of these at Moonee Valley. 

In March 2011, Max Burton resigned from his position 
as Senior Staffing Co-ordinator.  Max commenced 
at the MVRC in 1994 and was a key member of the 
staff, working in payroll and assisting the Operations 
Department. 

The Club thanks both David and Max for their 
contributions to the MVRC throughout their tenure.

The Club also developed a sales incentive plan 
model for the sales staff across sponsorship, raceday 
corporate hospitality and non-raceday events. 
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Marketing and Communications

Marketing
The marketing team used a tiered brand strategy to cover the Club’s major business streams.  The approach enabled 
MVRC to rationalise the promotion and awareness of products and services while also providing a professional, attractive 
look in all areas of advertising and collateral in the marketplace.

Day racing and events under the banner:
‘More to Enjoy at the Valley’

Media Partnerships  
and Publicity
Throughout the 2010 / 2011 season the Communications 
Department continued to develop MVRC’s relationships 
with key media partners resulting in further positive  
media coverage for both racing and social media 
throughout the season.

Media partnerships and relationships with key media 
allowed MVRC to maximise publicity opportunities to 
complement the advertising campaigns especially  
around the Launch of Night Racing, Tatts Cox Plate 
Day, Tatts Cox Plate Week Events, New Year’s Eve, TGI 
February! race meetings and promotions, and the Night 
Racing Season Finale.

MVRC’s 2010 / 2011 media partners were Channel Nine, 
TVN, Herald Sun, Moonee Valley Leader, Moonee Valley 
Weekly, Winning Post, Best Bets, Radio Sport National, 
SEN, Nova, Triple M, and APN Outdoor.

Moonee Valley Racing Club proactively developed 
publicity opportunities pre-event and post-event with 
numerous media organisations including the Herald Sun, 
the Sunday Herald Sun, The Age, the Moonee Valley 
Weekly, the Moonee Valley Leader, Winning Post, Channel 
Seven, Channel Nine, Channel Ten, Fox Sports, TVN, Sky, 

Radio Sport National, Nova, and SEN.  Moonee Valley 
Racing Club also gained media coverage with interstate, 
international, and country media.

MVRC continued to set-up stable calls and photo shoots 
at stables which were well attended by the media as well 
as inviting the media to Moonee Valley track work ahead 
of a race meeting.

Maximising Marketing 
Opportunities
MVRC developed an advertising campaign for the Night 
Racing Season Finale featuring the Group 1 William Reid 
Stakes when Black Caviar’s connections had decided their 
horse would run in the race. The communication message 
and call to action used was to ‘see the fastest horse in 
the world’ basing the campaign around the horse and not 
the race itself. We have since seen other racing clubs and 
industry participants take to similar campaigning.

Another initiative for the Night Racing Season Finale was 
the ‘Caviar Express’, with 10 buses from country Victoria 
making their way to Moonee Valley for the race meeting.  
On that night, patrons filled the Black Caviar themed dinner, 
with the sold-out function titled ‘Champagne and Caviar’.

Night racing under the proposition of:
‘The Nights Come Alive at the Valley’

Tatts Cox Plate Promotion Under The Offering OF: 
‘The Race Where Legends Are Made’

more to
at the

ENJOY
VALLEY

ONLY AT MOONEE VALLEY FRIDAY NIGHT 25 MARCH
IN THE PULSE PHARMACY WILLIAM REID STAKES (G1)

Country bus package $30. Champagne & Caviar Dinner $100  
Call MVRC customer service 1300 79 79 59 or visit mvrc.net.au

NIGHT RACING

SEE THE FASTEST HORSE IN THE WORLD

BLACK CAVIAR

TATTS COX PLATE

THE RACE
LEGENDSwhere

are made

THE RACE
LEGENDS

where
are made
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Events
In 2010 / 2011 MVRC Events set a new benchmark 
for on-course entertainment on racedays and 
delivered what has been hailed, both internally and 
externally, a sensational year of events.

Nova was engaged to partner the Pure Pleasure 
Enclosure in the centre of the race track for Cox Plate 
Day 2010 which resulted in sales doubling from 2009.

MVRC hosted heats of the Miss Universe Australia 
pageant on 4 and 18 March. They were located on the 
Burston Lawn and created significant interest among 
the patrons attending those nights.

TGIFebruary! was rolled out for the month of 
February and different activations were implemented 
during the month. This included public and Members 
dining promotions, music for the 18-35 year market, 
attendance specials, and a range of oncourse activities. 
Pure Pleasure Lounge opened every Friday night. ‘Win 
$955 in 55 seconds’ and ‘Wine, Dine and Win’ dining 
promotions were both run.

A New Year’s Eve race meeting was a first for Moonee 
Valley and the racing industry.  Marketed to the local 
area, the night was evaluated as having merit and gives 
MVRC something to build on in 2011.

Membership and  
Customer Service
Throughout the 2010 / 2011 season, the Club 
welcomed 439 fully paid new Members. The Club 
currently has 4,609 Members of which 4,374 are 
fully paid and 235 are Honorary or Life Members. 
Members purchased 2,752 Annual Guest Passes for 
the season.

The Race for Awards program was again popular with 
Members. More than 2,300 of the Club’s Members 
reached a reward from the Club ranging from 
Members’ Reserve Daily Guest Passes to invitations to 
the Tatts Cox Plate Barrier Draw Breakfast.

The Club held its first Legends Evening where we 
interviewed past Cox Plate winning trainers, Mark 
Kavanagh and Colin Little and Cox Plate winning 
jockeys Glen Boss and Luke Nolen. Over 100 
Members attended this event. 

The Junior Jocks Christmas Party was again a success 
with over 600 of our youngest Members attending  
the day. 

Each child received a gift from Santa and was 
entertained with a number of children’s activities.

The Club thanks all of our Members for their 
continued loyal support of Moonee Valley Racing  
Club and we look forward to an exciting 2011 / 2012 
Racing Season.

Racing Sponsors

Marketing and Communications Marketing and Communications

Principal
•	 Tatts Group

Major
•	 Foster’s Group
•	 Sportingbet

Cox Plate Sponsors
•	 1300 Australia
•	 AAMI
•	 Arrow Training Services
•	 Cathay Pacific
•	 Inglis
•	 Microflite Helicopter Services
•	 Patinack Farm
•	 Pulse Pharmacy
•	 Schweppes

•	 Access Covers
•	 Ascend Sales
•	 Adapt Australia
•	 Advanced Mailing Solutions
•	 Alternative Railway Solutions
•	 Aquanas
•	 Cleanevent
•	 CFMEU
•	 Dominant
•	 Dató Tan Chin Nam
•	 Dr Sheahan
•	 Essendon Mazda
•	 Essendon Nissan
•	 Essendon Hyundai
•	 Essendon Jeep Chrysler Dodge
•	 E J Whitten Foundation
•	 Eliza Park
•	 Fisher & Paykel
•	 Gillies Pies
•	 Hacer Group
•	 Haden
•	 Hire Style
•	 Hollylodge Thoroughbreds
•	 K-Line
•	 LF Signs & Designs
•	 Mittys

•	 Mix 101.1
•	 Moonee Valley City Council
•	 Moreton Hire
•	 Mercedes Benz Vans
•	 OZ Access
•	 Programmed Property Services
•	 Printhouse Graphics
•	 Ready Workforce
•	 RISA
•	 Ryan & McNulty Sawmillers
•	 RDC Carpets
•	 SAJ Catercare
•	 Simpson Construction
•	 Sungold Milk
•	 Swift Signs
•	 Strathmore Flowers
•	 Tabcorp
•	 Thoroughbred Breeders Victoria
•	 Top Cut Foods
•	 Tom Waterhouse 
•	 TEAC
•	 Think Big Stud
•	 United Refrigeration
•	 Webb Australia
•	 Variety Club

Sponsorship
The most pleasing aspect to sponsorship in 2010 / 2011 
was the growth in support for Night Racing.  Friday 
night racing is an attractive product for sponsors who 
receive branding opportunities and first class corporate 
hospitality for clients and staff.

The Club could not deliver Cox Plate day without the 
support of the Tatts Group who sponsored the Cox 
Plate for the fifth time.  We also thank all other Tatts 
Cox Plate Day sponsors who ensure the day is  
a success. 

The Club secured a three-year deal with Sportingbet 
to become our night racing naming rights partner. 
Sportingbet have been a loyal supporter of MVRC and 
we look forward to growing the night racing product 
with them. 

MVRC would also like to thank two long-term sponsors 
AAMI and Cathay Pacific who have decided not to 
sponsor the Club moving forward. Both sponsors have 
been a great supporter of  Tatts Cox Plate Day and the 
Club wishes them the best for the future. 

We thank all sponsors of the Moonee Valley Racing 
Club for their continued generous support. 
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Catering Report

A successful 2010 Tatts Cox Plate was the main driver 
behind the improved returns from raceday catering 
operations, with revenue increasing by more than 
$583,000 on the previous year.  An increase in the 
number of corporate marquees, dining reservations 
and enclosure patrons for the Cox Plate meeting 
led to the increase in catering revenue, and tighter 
controls over the cost of goods and wages delivered 
an outstanding result.  

A number of new dining options were implemented 
in the marquees and restaurants on Cox Plate Day, 
and the feedback from our patrons was very positive. 
Further refinements are planned for the 2011 Tatts 
Cox Plate meeting, with a number of enhancements to 
be introduced.  

Our night racing catering results showed significant 
growth across the 2010 / 2011 season, highlighted by the 
number of dining patrons that booked in for the Night 
Racing Season Finale meeting when Black Caviar won the 
Pulse Pharmacy William Reid Stakes.  More than 2,500 
dining packages were purchased that night, making it the 
second busiest event behind the Cox Plate. 

Dining bookings across the night racing season 
increased by more than 19%, and revenue from bar 
sales for the 18 night meetings delivered an increase of 
more than 22% on the previous year.  

The Club has invested heavily in two software 
projects that have been instrumental in improving 
the performance of the Catering Department.  The 
Swiftpos Point of Sale system implementation was 
completed in August 2010, and has proven very 
effective in controlling food and beverage stock, as well 
as being an effective point of sale system throughout 
the various on-course retail outlets.   

The second most significant cost in the catering 
business is labour, with the need to engage large 
volumes of casual staff to deliver our raceday and non-
raceday events.  The Catering team has worked closely 
with the IT and Human Resources Departments to 
implement the Inzenius payroll and rostering software 
program.  Inzenius delivers a full end-to-end rostering, 
time and attendance and payroll solution, and we have 
been able to tailor this software to the needs of our 
business.  The Catering team has fully embraced the 

Inzenius software package, and believe that it is an 
effective business tool to manage our vast pool of 
casual labour and our wages budget.

Throughout the season, the Club has renegotiated 
a number of key supply contracts across both food 
and liquor.  Our relationship with Carlton and United 
Breweries has been extended for a further 5 year 
term across all beer products.  The Club went to 
tender for our spirits contract, and this was awarded 
to Coca Cola Amatil Spirits, with Jim Beam the key 
product included under this new arrangement.  The 
wine contract for the Club was also put to tender, 
and after due consideration, the Club awarded this 
contract to Mitchelton Winery.  Both Coca Cola 
and Mitchelton product ranges have been fully 
implemented throughout the raceday and non-
raceday catering operations, as well as Legends. 

Members continue to enjoy a high quality and diverse 
range of raceday catering options, including the buffet 
in the Members’ Dining Room and the set menu and 
a la carte packages in the Dining Boxes.  Our team 
of chefs continue to be innovative in menu design 
to ensure that the dining offer remains fresh and 
appealing to our Members and their guests. 

Our non-raceday functions business Valley Events has 
struggled to meet its revenue targets throughout the 
past season.  A change in structure with the sales  
staff and challenging economic conditions saw a 
reduction in Valley Events revenue of 4.4%.  Early 
indications for the 2011 / 2012 season show an 
improved performance in Valley Events, with the Club 
proactively marketing the venue for the full range of 
events and functions.  

Dining bookings across the night racing season 
increased by more than 19%, and revenue from 
bar sales for the 18 night meetings delivered an 
increase of more than 22% on the previous year.  

Throughout the 2010 / 2011 season, the Catering Department has 
achieved significant improvement across all of the key performance 
indicators that measure financial performance as well as quality control 
across food, beverage and service. 
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Legends Report

THE GAMING LANDSCAPE 
MOVING FORWARD
During the 2010 / 2011 financial year, we have seen 
several changes and announcements that will impact 
the gaming business model post August 2012.  The 
most significant opportunity that exists for Moonee 
Valley Legends is the removal of the gaming duopoly 
that was shared between Tabcorp and the Tatts Group, 
and the move towards a greater share of revenue and 
profitability from the commissions earned through the 
electronic gaming machines.  

As we move through the 2011 / 2012 year, the Club 
will continue to investigate and consider the available 
options in regards to management services support. 

There are a number of service providers that have 
developed a suite of services to support all aspects 
of gaming related activity.  The Club will engage the 
necessary expertise to ensure a smooth transition 
and develop the necessary systems and processes to 
deliver revenue growth.  

There are a number of factors that could negatively 
impact the gaming operations of Moonee Valley 
Legends, including restrictions on ATM’s, compliance 
and pre commitment. 

The State Government finalised and announced that 
the Monitoring Licence for Victoria had been granted 
to Intralot post August 2012. 

The operating environment for Moonee Valley Legends continues 
to face numerous challenges as we move towards the new owner 
operator model in August 2012.  Venue profitability was down on 
2009 / 2010 as a result of reduced catering revenue and wagering 
commissions, however, commissions from gaming were stable 
despite the impact of economic conditions throughout the year.  
Further efficiencies were achieved in venue administration following 
an extensive cost review project.

Moonee Valley Legends was successful in securing 105 
electronic gaming machine entitlements in May 2010 
for the new operating environment that commences in 
August 2012.  At this time, the Club will have control 
over the entire product range on offer from suppliers 
and will be able to create a competitive and exciting 
offer to our patrons.  Moonee Valley Legends will have 
greater flexibility to offer a wider range of the very 
best and popular gaming products that are available in 
the marketplace. 

WAGERING
In August, the Victorian State Government announced 
that the new wagering licence had been awarded 
to Tabcorp.  This decision will ensure stability in the 
wagering market, and encourage further investment in 
upgrading our TAB facilities.   

MEMBERS, GUESTS, MARKETING  
AND DINING
Moonee Valley Legends continues to deliver many  
new initiatives.  The new payroll and point of sale 
systems have enabled the venue to streamline several 
tasks and offer both staff and customers up to date 
information and services. Working closely with the 
marketing department, we have promoted our specials, 
major events, feature race days, entertainment  
and continue to produce a high quality monthly 
newsletter distributed to over 4000 Moonee Valley 
Legends Members.

Moonee Valley Legends continue to offer members 
a variety of entertainment options with Bingo, Poker, 
Members’ nights and many other popular activities 
throughout the year.

During the past twelve months Moonee Valley Legends 
have continued to offer a range of daily specials to 
Members and guests through the Café and Bistro. 
These have been extremely popular and continue to 
generate high levels of traffic throughout the venue. 

Moonee Valley Legends focus moving forward will 
be to deliver the highest possible standard in service, 
quality and variety. The Club will continue to focus 
on offering a value for money experience with daily 
specials in the Trackside Bistro and regular menu 
changes in the Terrace Cafe. With the addition of a 
new Bistro Manager, focus will be on menu design, 
presentation and pricing, as we aim to establish our 
Club as a leading entertainment venue within the  
local market.

Tatts Group and Moonee Valley Legends continue to 
have a strong relationship.  With their support and 
extensive expertise, we have been able to maximise 
our marketing and promotions, and offer our 
Members and guests the best possible products. As 
our partnership with the Tatts Group draws to an end 
in August 2012, I would again like to thank the Tatts 
Group for their assistance, guidance and support over 
the past six years. 

THE COMMUNITY AND THE CLUB
Moonee Valley Legends supports many local charities, 
sporting organisations, schools and other community 
groups, and will continue to contribute to support the 
local community wherever possible.
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 		  2011	 2010
		  $000 	 $000

Income 
Thoroughbred racing industry distributions					   
	 - Prizemoney minimums funding & top up incentives	 15,883	 18,130
  	 - Program variation fee	 1,305	 1,460
   	- Other funding	 655	 945
Sponsorship and broadcast rights	 5,460	 5,446
Betting levies and commissions	 1,057	 1,177
Admissions	 1,352	 1,304
Nominations and acceptances	 1,142	 1,314
Membership subscriptions and entrance fees	 1,388	 1,472
Raceday catering	 7,054	 6,326
Other raceday revenue	 695	 786
Non-raceday catering and gaming revenue	 9,174	 9,491
Interest received	 148	 143
Contributions towards racecourse development projects	 1,302	 1,302
Share of Australian Pricing Network profits/(losses)	 104	 113
Income from harness racing	 -	 764
Increase/(Decrease) in value of assets at fair value	 162	 (58)
Other revenue	 677	 998

Total Income	 47,558	 51,171

Expenditure			 
Returns To Owners					   
   - Prizemoney	 18,522	 20,769
   - Other Payments & Subsidies	 384	 185
Racecourse maintenance	 4,883	 4,661
Raceday catering expenses	 3,755	 3,582
Other Raceday expenses	 5,231	 5,278
Expenses from harness racing	 -	 475
Marketing, membership and business development	 1,994	 1,925
Non-raceday catering and gaming expenses	 8,895	 8,734
Administration	 2,786	 3,102
Bad and doubtful debts	 (5)	 11
Depreciation	 2,953	 2,724
Loss on disposal/scrapping of fixed assets	 16	 361
Interest expense	 -	 14

Total Expenditure	 49,414	 51,879

Net Surplus/(Loss)	 (1,856)	 (708)

Other comprehensive income						    
Net value loss on available for sale financial assets – Sport 927	 (1,069)	 -		
Total Other Comprehensive Income	 (1,069)	 -

Total comprehensive income	 (2,925)	 (708)
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			   2011 	  2010 
		  Note	 $000 	  $000 

Current assets 	  			 
Cash and cash equivalents	  	  1,965 	 3,371 
Trade and other receivables	 3 	  2,970 	 2,444 
Inventories	  	  964 	 1,041 
Prepayments	  	  733 	 692 
Financial assets	 6 	  5 	 4 

Total current assets	  	  6,637 	 7,552 

Non-current assets	  			 
Trade and other receivables	 3 	  1,000 	 1,905 
Property, plant and equipment	 4 	  84,922 	 85,427 
Investments in associates	 5 	  170	 116 
Financial assets	 6 	  8,038 	  9,058 

Total non-current assets	  	  94,130 	  96,506 

Total assets	  	  100,767 	 104,058 
				     			 
Current liabilities	  			 
Trade and other payables	 7 	  2,550 	  3,376 
Advance fees and subscriptions	  	  2,649 	  2,182 
Employee benefits	 8 	  1,089 	  1,108 

Total current liabilities	  	  6,288 	  6,666 
			    			 
Non-current liabilities	   			 
Employee benefits	 8 	  187 	 175 

Total non-current liabilities	  	  187 	 175 

Total liabilities	  	  6,475 	 6,841 

Net assets	  	  94,292 	 97,217 
		   			    
Members’ funds					   
Accumulated funds		  89,672	 91,528 
Reserves		   4,620 	 5,689 

Total members’ funds		  94,292 	 97,217 

			    2011 	 2010 
		  Note 	 $000 	  $000 

Cash flows from operating activities 	   			 
Receipts from customers		   52,921 	 57,609 
Payments to owners		   (20,797)	  (23,049)
Payments to suppliers and employees		   (31,158)	  (30,308)
Goods and services tax paid		   (88)	  (386)
Interest received		   148 	 143 
Interest paid		   - 	 (14)

Net cash inflow from operating activities 	  9 	  1,026 	 3,995 
				  
Cash flows from investing activities 				  
Proceeds from sale of property, plant & equipment		   3 	  - 
Loan to Sport 927 - digital broadcasting		   - 	 4 
Payment received from repayment of short term Loan to TVN		   - 	 500 
Distributions received from equity investments - APN		   50 	  50 
Repayment of unsecured loan - Racing Victoria Ltd		   - 	 (250)
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment		   (2,485)	 (4,627)

Net cash outflow from investing activities 		   (2,432)	 (4,323)
				  
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents 		   (1,406)	 (328)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year		   3,371 	 3,699 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 		   1,965 	 3,371 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 JULY, 2011

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
for year ended 31 JULY, 2011
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	  	 $000 	  $000 	  $000 
		
		  Members’	 Fair Value	 Total
		  Funds	 Reserve	 Equity
			 
At 31 July, 2009	  92,236 	  5,689 	  97,925 
Loss for the year	 ( 708) 	  -   	 ( 708) 

At 31 July, 2010	  91,528 	  5,689 	  97,217 
			 
Loss for the year	 ( 1,856) 	  -   	 ( 1,856) 
			 
Other Comprehensive Income:			 
Write down of investment in Sport 927	  -   	 ( 1,069) 	 ( 1,069) 
			 
At 31 July, 2011	  89,672 	  4,620 	  94,292 

1.	GENERAL

Moonee Valley Racing Club Inc. (the Club) is an incorporated association domiciled in Victoria, Australia. The registered 
office of the Club is McPherson Street, Moonee Ponds.  The Club’s principal activity is that of thoroughbred horse racing. 
As at 31 July 2011 the Club had 186 full-time equivalent employees (2010 = 223).  The decrease is a result of the 
cessation of harness racing activities at the Club as of February 2010. 

2.	SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

BASIS OF PREPARATION
The financial report is a general purpose financial report that has been prepared in accordance with applicable 
Accounting Standards (including Australian Equivalents to International Financial Standards (AIFRS)), Urgent Issues Group 
Consensus Views, and other requirements of law. 

This report is presented in Australian Dollars and all values have been rounded to the nearest thousand dollars ($000) 
unless otherwise stated.

The financial report has been prepared on an accruals basis and is based on historical costs, modified by the  
revaluation of selected non-current assets, financial assets and financial liabilities for which the fair value basis of 
accounting has been applied.

Changes to Accounting Policies
Accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous year; no new/revised accounting policies were 
introduced during the year ended 31 July, 2011.

Australian Accounting Standards recently issued or amended but not yet effective
Two new standards and interpretations that have been issued but have not yet been made effective by the Australia 
Accounting Standards Board (“AASB”) which are applicable to annual reporting periods beginning 1 January 2013 
include:
	 • AASB 9 : Financial Instruments
	 • IFRS 13 : Fair Value Measurement

The Club is currently assessing the impact of these standards and does not expect the new standards to have a material 
impact on the financial statements.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a)	Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position comprise of cash at bank, on hand and short-term 
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less.

For the purposes of the statement of cash flow, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents as defined 
above, net of any bank overdrafts.

The Club has a $1,000,000 unsecured overdraft facility with the ANZ bank that remains unutilised as at 31 July, 2011.

(b)Trade and other receivables
Trade receivables are recognised and carried at original invoice value less a provision for any uncollectible debts. An 
estimate for doubtful debts is made when collection of the full amount is no longer probable. Bad debts are written  
off as incurred.  

Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31 July, 2011

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY, 2011
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(c)	 Investment in associates
The Club is of the opinion that its 16.67% investment in Australian Prices’ Network represents a significant 
interest, and as such the investment in this associate is accounted for under the equity method.  

The Club is of the opinion that its 25% investment in Thoroughbred Racing Productions (Vic) Pty Ltd represents 
a significant interest and as such the investment in this associate is accounted for under the equity method.

Under the equity accounting method:
	 •	  The initial investment is recorded at cost; 
	 • 	The investment is subsequently adjusted by the investor’s share of the associate’s change in net assets  
		  (ie profits and reserve movements after date of acquisition);
	 •	The investor’s income statement reflects its share of the investee’s profit or loss for the same period.

(d) Financial assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 
The Club has classified its investment in income securities as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. 
These assets are recognised at fair value, with subsequent movements in the fair value of these assets adjusted 
through profit and loss. Fair value of these assets is determined with reference to quoted market prices.

Available-for-sale financial assets
The Club has classified its investments in the following entities as available-for-sale financial assets:
	 •	ThoroughVisioN Pty Ltd
	 •	 3UZ Pty Ltd (Sport 927)

Available-for-sale financial assets are stated at fair value less impairment. Fair value is determined with reference 
to current or recent market transaction price, or in the absence of this, in accordance with generally accepted 
pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis. 

Gains and losses arising from fair value are recognised directly in the available-for-sale revaluation reserve, 
until the investment is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or loss 
previously recognised in the available-for-sale revaluation reserve is included in profit or loss for the period.

Loans 
Loans and other receivables are recorded at amortised cost less impairment.  

(e) Interest-bearing loans and borrowings
All loans and borrowings are initially recognised at the fair value of the consideration received less directly 
attributable transaction costs.

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost 
using the effective interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities that are yield related are 
included as part of the carrying amount of the loans and borrowings.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Club has an unconditional right to defer settlement of 
the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset (i.e. an 
asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale) are capitalised as 
part of the cost of that asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they occur.

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of 
funds. The Club does not currently hold qualifying assets but, if it did, the borrowing costs directly associated with 
this asset would be capitalised (including any other associated costs directly attributable to the borrowing and 
temporary investment income earned on the borrowing).
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(f)	Impairment
At each reporting date, the club reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets (if any) to 
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication 
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss  
(if any). Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are independent from other assets, the club estimates 
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the 
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current 
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future 
cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, 
the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment 
loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at fair value, in which case the 
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is 
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but only to the extent that the increased carrying 
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been 
recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised 
in profit or loss immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at fair value, in which case the reversal of the 
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

(g)	 Inventories
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value is the estimated selling 
price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and selling expenses.

(h) Provisions
Provisions are recognised when:
	 •	 the Club has a legal, equitable or constructive obligation to make a future sacrifice of economic benefits  
		  to other entities as a result of past transactions or other past events;
	 •	 it is probable that a future sacrifice of economic benefits will be required; and 
	 •	 a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying value is 
the present value of these cash flows. 

(i)	Trade and other payables
Trade payables and other payables are carried at amortised costs and represent liabilities for goods and services 
provided to the Club prior to the end of the financial year that are unpaid and arise when the Club becomes 
obliged to make future payments in respect of the purchase of these goods and services.

(j)	Property, plant and equipment
The Club has elected to use the cost model to measure the value of property, plant and equipment subsequent to 
initial recognition. Under the cost model, the carrying amount of each item within the entire class of property, plant 
and equipment is its cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of each part of an item of property, 
plant and equipment.  Assets costing less than $1,000 are written off in the financial year of purchase. Freehold 
land is not depreciated.

The following useful lives are used in the calculation of depreciation:
	 •	 Buildings 33-50 years
	 •	 Plant and equipment 3-20 years
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(k) Leases
Leases are classified at their inception as either operating or finance leases based on the economic substance of 
the agreement, so as to reflect the risks and benefits incidental to ownership.

Operating Leases
The minimum lease payments of operating leases, where the lessor effectively retains all of the risks and benefits 
of ownership of the leased item, are recognised as an expense to profit or loss on a straight-line basis.

Finance Leases
Leases that effectively transfer substantially all of the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased item 
to the Club are capitalised at the present value of minimum lease payments and disclosed as property, plant and 
equipment under lease. A lease liability of equal value is also recognised, and is determined in accordance with 
AASB 117: Leases. Capitalised leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the 
assets and the lease term. Minimum lease payments are allocated between interest expense and the reduction of 
the lease liability, with the interest expense calculated using the interest rate implicit in the lease, and recognised 
directly in net profit.

(l)	Income tax
The Club is exempt from income tax under Section 50–45 item 9.1(a) of the Income Tax Assessment Act (1997) 
as amended.

(m) Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that economic benefits will flow to the entity and the 
revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is not recognised until control of the goods has passed to the buyer 
or services have been completed.

(n) Provisions and employee benefits

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Club has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past 
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the 
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the Club expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example under an insurance contract, 
the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. 
The expense relating to any provision is presented in the statement of comprehensive income net of any 
reimbursement.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to 
settle the present obligation at the reporting date. The discount rate used to determine the present value reflects 
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability.  The increase in the 
provision resulting from the passage of time is recognised in finance costs.

Employee leave benefits
(i) Wages, salaries, annual leave and sick leave
Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits, annual leave and accumulating sick leave 
expected to be settled within 12 months of the reporting date are recognised in respect of employees’ services 
up to the reporting date. They are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. 
Expenses for non-accumulating sick leave are recognised when the leave is taken and are measured at the rates 
paid or payable.
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(ii) Long service leave
The liability for long service leave is recognised and measured as the present value of expected future payments to be 
made in respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date using the projected unit credit method. 
Consideration is given to expected future wage and salary levels, experience of employee departures, and periods of 
service. Expected future payments are discounted using market yields at the reporting date on national government 
bonds with terms to maturity and currencies that match, as closely as possible, with the estimated future cash outflows.

(o) Goods and services tax
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST), except:
	 •	where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the taxation authority, it is recognised as part of the  
		  cost of acquisition of an asset or as part of an item of expenditure; or
	 •	 for receivables and payables which are recognised inclusive of GST.

The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables  
or payables.

Cash flows are included in the Statement of Cash Flows on a gross basis. The GST component of cash flows arising 
from investing activities which is recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is classified as an operating  
cash flow.

(p) Key Management Personnel
For the purposes of AASB 124: Related Party Disclosures, Key Management Personnel are defined as the Chief 
Executive and all Senior Managers.

(q) Comparative amounts
Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified to accord with the current year’s presentation. The reclassification 
of comparative amounts has not resulted in a change to the aggregate amounts of Current Assets, Non-Current Assets, 
Current Liabilities, Non-Current Liabilities or Equity, or the Net Loss of the Club as reported in the prior year financial report.
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			   2011 	 2010 
			   $000 	 $000 

Current						    
Trade debtors		   1,507	 966 
less provision for impairment loss		  (10)	 (17)
			 
			   1,497	  949 
Sundry debtors		  1,473	 1,495 

			    2,970	 2,444 		

Non-Current		
Sundry debtors		  1,000 	 1,905 
		
			    1,000 	 1,905 

			   2011 	 2010
			   $000 	 $000

Not yet due 		  1,246 	 728
0-30 days past due - not impaired 		  83 	 217
31-60 days past due - not impaired 		  96 	 2
+61 days - not impaired 		  72 	 2
+61 days - considered impaired 		  10 	 17

Total 		  1,507 	 966

			   	BBSW Rate (%)

Period		  2011		  2010

90 Days		  4.88%		  4.78%
1 Year 		  4.05% 		  4.87%
2 Years 		  4.03% 		  4.93%

						       	
			   2011 	 2010 
			    $000 	 $000 

Balance at 1 August		  17 	  11 
Charged/(written back) to operating profit		  (7)	  11 

			    10 	  22 
Amounts written off during year		  - 	  (5)

Balance at 31 July		  10 	 17 

Trade debtors are non-interest bearing and are generally on 30 day terms. A provision for impairment loss is 
recognised where there is objective evidence that an individual trade debtor is impaired.  

The sundry debtors balance includes an amount receivable from Harness Racing Victoria in respect of the early 
termination of their long-term contract with the Club. It also includes an amount receivable from Racing Victoria Ltd in 
respect of media rights.  Both of these debtors continued to meet their contracted payment terms during the year.  

Movements in the provision for impairment loss account were as follows:

The ageing analysis of trade debtors was as follows:

Other balances within trade and other receivables do not contain impaired assets and are not past due. It is expected 
that these other balances will be received when due.

Due to the short-term nature of those receivables classified as current, their carrying value is assumed to  
approximate their fair value. Receivables classified as non-current have been discounted to present value using the 
appropriate BBSW rate.

The Club’s maximum exposure to credit risk is the fair value of receivables. Collateral is not held as security, nor is it 
the Club’s policy to transfer or on-sell receivables to special purpose entities.

3.	TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY, 2011

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY, 2011

5352



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY, 2011

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY, 2011

	 Construction 	 Freehold 	 Buildings and 	 Plant and 	 Artworks 	 Totals
	 Works in 	 Land 	 Infrastructure 	 Equipment
	 Progress

	 $000 	 $000 	 $000 	 $000 	 $000 	 $000

Cost
Balance at 1 August, 2009 	 612 	 42,000 	 30,829 	 33,146	 349 	 106,936
Additions 	 4,627 	 -	 -	 -	 -	 4,627
Transfers 	 (3,032) 	 -	 -	 3,026 	 6	 - 
Disposals/scrapped 	 -	 -	 -	 (2,044) 	 - 	 (2,044)

Balance at 31 July, 2010 	 2,207 	 42,000 	 30,829 	 34,128 	 355 	 109,519

Balance at 1 August, 2010 	 2,207 	 42,000 	 30,829 	 34,128 	 355 	 109,519
Additions 	 2,514 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 2,514
Transfers 	 (3,546) 	 - 	 - 	 3,543 	 3 	 -
Disposals/scrapped 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 (505) 	 (8) 	 (513)

Balance at 31 July, 2011 	 1,175 	 42,000 	 30,829 	 37,166 	 350 	 111,520

Depreciation
Balance at 1 August, 2009 	 - 	 - 	 5,574 	 17,267 	 194 	 23,035
Depreciation 	 - 	 - 	 616 	 2,094 	 14 	 2,724
Transfers 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 -
Disposals/scrapped 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 (1,667) 	 - 	 (1,667)

Balance at 31 July, 2010 	 - 	 - 	 6,190 	 17,694 	 208 	 24,092

Balance at 1 August, 2010 	 - 	 - 	 6,190 	 17,694 	 208 	 24,092
Depreciation 	 - 	 - 	 616 	 2,323 	 14 	 2,953
Transfers 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 -
Disposals/scrapped 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 (442) 	 (5) 	 (447)

Balance at 31 July, 2011 	 - 	 - 	 6,806 	 19,575 	 217 	 26,598

Net Carrying Amount

As at 31 July 2010 	 2,207 	 42,000 	 24,639 	 16,434 	 147 	 85,427

As at 31 July 2011 	 1,175 	 42,000 	 24,023 	 17,591 	 133 	 84,922

4. PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT 5. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

The Club has a 16.67% interest in Australian Prices’ Network (APN).  The principal activity of APN is the 
dissemination of bookmakers’ prices. 

The Club also has a 25% interest in Thoroughbred Racing Productions (Vic) Pty Ltd (TRP).  The principal activity of 
TRP is the provision of outside broadcasting services to the Victorian racing clubs.  As at 30 June, 2011,  TRP had net 
liabilities of $58,587 (2010: $530,676), and as such the Club’s investment is recognised in the accounts at cost of $1 
(2010: $1). It is expected that TRP will be in a net asset position by 30 June, 2013, at which time the Club will account 
for its share of the investment under equity accounting rules.

(*) Note: TRP financial information is as at YTD 30 June, 2011.

		  2011 	 2010
		  $000 	 $000

Movement in investments in associates - (APN) 
Equity accounted amount of investment at the beginning of the financial year 	 116 	 53
Share of profit from ordinary activities 	 104 	 113
Share of cash distribution 	 (50) 	 (50)

Equity accounted amount of investment  
at the end of the financial year 	 170 	 116

	 	APN 			  TRP
	 2011 		 2010 	 2011(*) 		 2010
	 $000 		 $000 	 $000 		 $000

Summarised financial information of associates 	
Financial position
Total assets 	 1,098 		  762 	 9,985 		 11,488
Total liabilities 	 78 		  66 	 10,044 		 12,019
Net assets 	 1,020 		  696 	 (59) 		 (531)
MVRC share of associates’ net assets 	 170 		  116 	 (15) 		 (133)

Financial performance
Total revenue 	 1,409 		 1,443 	 8,159 		 7,693
Total profit for year 	 624 		  675 	 472 		 (314)
MVRC share of profit before income tax 	 104 		  113 	 118 		  (79)
MVRC share of income tax expense 	 - 		  - 	 - 		  -
MVRC share of associates’ profit 	 104 		  113 	 118 		  (79)

Contingent liabilities relating to the associate
Guarantee of associate’s finance facilities
for which the Club is severally liable (note 12) 				    2,794 		 2,794
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	 2 011 	 2 010
	 $000 	 $000

Current
Sport 927 (i) 	 5 	 4
	
	 5 	 4

Non current
Loans
Sport 927 (i) 
	 26 	 26
Financial assets designated at fair value through
profit and loss - held for trading (ii)
Income Securities 	 1,312 	 1 ,263

Available-for-sale financial assets (iii)
Investment in Sport 927 (iv) 	 1,075 	 2 ,144
Investment in ThoroughVisioN Pty Ltd 	 5,625 	 5 ,625

	 8 ,038 	 9 ,058

	 2011 	 2010
	 $000 	 $000

Trade creditors 	 1,417 	 2,717
Sundry creditors 	 1,133 	 659

	 2,550 	 3,376

	 2011 	 2010
	 $000 	 $000

Current
Provision for annual leave 	 361 	 373
Provision for long service leave 	 728 	 735

	 1,089 	 1,108

Non-current
Provision for annual leave 	 34 	 27
Provision for long service leave 	 153 	 148

	 187 	 175

6. FINANCIAL ASSETS

(i) The loan to Sport 927 is interest-bearing and is repayable by 30 June, 2017.

(ii) The fair value of financial assets designated at fair value through profit and loss has been determined directly by 
reference to published price quotations in an active market.

(iii) Available-for-sale investments consist of unlisted ordinary shares and therefore have no fixed maturity date or 
coupon rate.

(iv) Following a review of the carrying value of its investments, the Club wrote down its investment in Sport 927 
during the year.  The valuation adopted is based on the net asset value of Sport 927, adjusted for management’s 
estimation of the value of its radio licenses.

The fair value of the unlisted available-for-sale financial assets has been estimated using valuation techniques based on 
the assumptions outlined in Note 2. In some cases these techniques are not supported by observable market prices 
or rates. Management believes the estimated fair values reflected in the Statement of Financial Position are reasonable
and appropriate, and that changing any of the assumptions to a reasonably possible alternative would not result in a 
significantly different value.

7. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

8. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Trade creditors are non interest-bearing and are subject to payment terms of between 7 and 30 days. Due to the 
short term nature of these payables their carrying value is assumed to approximate fair value.
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9. STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

10. EXPENDITURE COMMITMENTS

11. Financial Risk Management Objectives And Policies

Reconciliation of operating surplus/(deficit) to the net cash flows from operating activities

	 2011 	 2010
	 $000 	 $000

Operating surplus/(deficit) 	 (1,856) 	 ( 708)

Add/(deduct)
- Total depreciation, amortisation & scrapped assets 	 2,953 	 2,724
- (Profit)/loss on disposal/scrapping of property, plant & equipment 	 16 	 376
- Other non cash items 	 (261) 	 ( 119)

Changes in asset and liability balances:
(Increase)/decrease in receivables 	 498 	 1,344
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments 	 (41) 	 ( 326)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories 	 77 	 ( 1)
Increase/(decrease) in fees in advance 	 468 	 97
Increase/(decrease) in payables 	 (828) 	 608

Net cash flow from operating activities 	 1,026 	 3,995

		  2011 	 2010
		  $000 	 $000

b) Lease Expenditure Commitments
(i) Operating leases
	 - payable not later than one year 	 20 	 24
	 - payable later than one year and not later than five years 	 - 	 20

Aggregate Lease Expenditure Commitments 	 20 	 44

Note: Operating leases relate to IT equipment.

c) Other Commitments
(i) Gaming machine license commitments
	 - payable later than one year and not later than five years 	 1,888 	 1,888

Aggregate Other Commitments 	 1,888 	 1,888

		  2011 	 2010
		  $000 	 $000

a) Capital Expenditure Commitments
(i) Capital expenditure contracted but not provided at year end
	 - payable not later than one year 	 - 	 280
(ii) Gaming machine purchase commitments
	 - payable not later than one year 	 484 	 -

Aggregate Capital Expenditure Commitments 	 484 	 280

During the 2011 year, the Club committed to purchase 105 electronic gaming machines at a total value of $484,200 
(including GST) as part of the new gaming venue operator arrangements which will take effect in 2012. The scheduled 
payment date is 16 August, 2012. At balance date, no liability has been recognised for these future payments. As a  
means of surety over this purchase the ANZ bank have provided a bank guarantee for the full value of the  
commitment ($484,200).

During the 2010 year, the Club committed to purchase 106 gaming machine entitlements at a total value of $1,986,566 
as part of the new gaming venue operator arrangements which will take effect in 2012. The machine entitlements will 
be valid for a period of 10 years from that date.  An initial deposit payment of $99,053 was made in June 2010 and
this has been recognised as a prepayment as at 31 July 2010 and 31 July 2011. The next scheduled instalment is due in 
August 2012 and the remaining instalments are payable over 18 quarters commencing November 2012.  At balance 
date, no liability has been recognised for these future payments.

Risk Management Policies
The Club has a formal investment policy which outlines acceptable investment vehicles. 

It is the policy of the Club not to enter into transactions that require the exchange of either foreign currency or interest 
rates in relation to future commitments.

The Club does not speculate in the trading of derivative assets.

The Club has adopted the policy of dealing only with creditworthy counterparties and obtaining sufficient collateral or 
security where appropriate as a means of mitigating the risk of financial losses from defaults.

Accounting Policies
Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of 
measurement, and the basis on which revenues and expenses are recognised, in respect to each class of financial asset, 
financial liability and equity instrument, are disclosed in Note 2 to the financial report.
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Interest rate risk
Cash balances are invested in a cash management account on a daily basis. The interest rate on this account is variable 
(2011: 4.75%; 2010: 3.97%).  

Income securities are listed on the Stock Exchange and are perpetual in nature. Interest on Income Securities is payable 
quarterly in arrears and is variable, with an average margin of 1.48% above the 90-day Bank Bill rate at balance date. 
(2010: 1.48%). 

At balance date, the Club had the following mix of assets and liabilities exposed to Australian variable interest rate risk 
that are not designated in cash flow hedges:

Management has conducted sensitivity analysis based on the interest rate risk exposures in existence at balance date. 
With all other variables held constant, operating profit would have been affected by the following amounts had interest 
rates moved by levels considered reasonably possible:

A change in interest rates would not have a material impact on the Club’s equity.

	  			   Impact on 
				    Profit

			   2011 		  2010
			   $000		  $000
Interest Rate Movement

	 (1.0%) 		  (33) 		  (51)
	 + 1.0% 		  33 		  51
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		  2011 	 2010
		  $000 	 $000

Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 	 1,965 	 3,371
Current loans 	 5 	 4
Non-current loans 	 26 	 26
Income securities 	 1,312 	 1,263

		  3,308 	 4,664

Financial Liabilties
Current loans 	 - 	 -
		  - 	 -

Net Exposure 	 3,308 	 4,664
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Credit Risk
Credit risk arises from the financial assets of the Club, which comprise cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, 
loans, listed securities and the granting of financial guarantees. The Club’s exposure to credit risk arises from potential default of 
the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of the financial assets (as outlined in each applicable 
note) as well as $2,793,750 (2010: $2,793,750) in relation to financial guarantees granted – see note 12 for further information.

The Club does not hold any credit derivatives to offset its credit exposure.

The Club trades only with recognised, creditworthy third parties, and as such collateral is not requested nor is it the Group’s 
policy to securitise its trade and other receivables.

The Club minimises concentration of credit risk in relation to trade receivables by undertaking transactions with a large 
number of customers across a range of industries. Credit risk in trade receivables is managed by formal risk assessment for 
new customers and formal monitoring of receivable balances by management on a monthly basis. The Club’s experience of 
bad debts has not been significant.

The Club does not have any significant exposure to any single counterparty or group of counterparties, with the exception 
of amounts receivable from RVL Media in respect of television rights for the period 1 July, 2008 to 31 July, 2009, and amounts 
receivable from Harness Racing Victoria in respect of the early termination of their long-term contract with the Club. Both 
of these arrangements are subject to contracted payment terms (which have been complied with to date) and management 
believes the risk of default is low. 

The credit quality of the Club is assessed and monitored as follows:

	 	    Equivalent S&P rating (i) 		  Internally rated (ii)
	
	 BBB+ and 		 BBB and 	 New	 Closely	 No default
	 above		  below	 customers	 monitored	 customers
					     customers		  Total
	 $000		  $000	 $000	 $000	 $000	 $000

Year ended 31 July, 2011
Current financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 	 1,965 		  - 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 1,965
Trade and other receivables 	 - 		  - 	 180 	 169 	 2,621 	 2,970
Loans 	 - 		  - 	 - 	 - 	 5 	 5

	 1,965 		  - 	 180 	 169 	 2,626 	 4,940

Non-current financial assets
Trade and other receivables 			   - 	 - 	 -	  1,000 	 1,000
Loans 	 - 		  - 	 - 	 - 	 26 	 26
Listed income securities 	 1,312 		  - 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 1,312
	
	 1,312 		  -	  - 	 - 	 1,026 	 2,338

Year ended 31 July, 2010
Current financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 	 3,371 		  - 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 3,371
Trade and other receivables 	 - 		  - 	 3 	 - 	 2,441 	 2,444
Loans 	 - 		  - 	 - 	 - 	 4	 4

	 3,371 		  - 	 3 	 - 	 2,445 	 5,819

Non-current financial assets
Trade and other receivables 			   - 	 - 	 - 	 1,905 	 1,905
Loans 	 - 		  - 	 - 	 - 	 26 	 26
Listed income securities 	 1,263 		  - 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 1,263
	
	 1,263 		  - 	 - 	 - 	 1,931 	 3,194
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(i) The equivalent S&P rating of the financial asset represents that rating of the counterparty with whom the financial 
asset is held rather than the rating of the financial asset itself.

(ii) New customers are counterparties with whom the Club has traded for less than one year. No default customers 
are customers with whom the Club has traded for greater than one year and have no history of default, late payments, 
renegotiated terms or breach of their credit terms within the past two years. Closely monitored customers are 
customers with whom the Group has traded for greater than one year and do not qualify as no default customers.

Currency Risk
The Club does not have exposure to financial instruments that are denominated in a foreign currency and as such is 
not exposed to any currency risk.

Price Risk
The Club’s exposure to commodity and equity securities price risk is not considered to be material in terms of a 
possible impact on profit and loss or total equity, and as such a sensitivity analysis has not been completed.

Liquidity Risk
The Club holds significant cash reserves and does not rely on external borrowings to finance its activities.

The Club no longer has any remaining contracted maturing financial liabilities. 

Maturity analysis of financial assets and liabilities based on management’s expectation. 
The risk implied from the values shown in the table below reflects a balanced view of the Club’s cash inflows and 
outflows. Trade payables and other financial liabilities mainly originate from the financing of assets used in the Club’s 
ongoing operations such as property, plant, equipment and investments in working capital, eg inventories and trade 
receivables. These assets are considered when assessing the Club’s overall liquidity risk. Income securities are listed 
investments and as such can be liquidated if required. For this reason they have been classified as maturing within  
6 months in the table below. The Club monitors the expected settlement of financial assets and liabilities on an  
ongoing basis.

Fair value
The Club uses various methods in estimating the fair value of a financial instrument. The methods comprise:

Level 1 – the fair value is calculated using quoted prices in active markets.

Level 2 – the fair value is estimated using inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for    
the asset or liability, either directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived from prices).

Level 3 – the fair value is estimated using inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data.

The fair value of the financial instruments as well as the methods used to estimate the fair value are summarised  
in the table below.

Quoted market price represents the fair value determined based on quoted prices on active markets as at the 
reporting date without any deduction for transaction costs. The fair value of the listed income securities investments 
are based on quoted market prices. 

For financial instruments not quoted in active markets, the Club uses valuation techniques such as present value 
techniques, comparison to similar instruments for which market observable prices exist and other relevant models 
used by market participants. These valuation techniques use both observable and unobservable market inputs. 

Transfer between categories
There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the year.

	 < 6 	 6 - 12 	 1 - 5 	 > 5 	 Total
	 months 	 months 	 years 	 years
	 $000 	 $000 	 $000 	 $000 	 $000

Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 	 1,965 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 1,965
Trade & other receivables 	 2,452 	 577 	 941 	 - 	 3,970
Loans 	 - 	 5 	 21 	 5 	 31
Income securities 	 1,312 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 1,312

	 5,729 	 582 	 962 	 5 	 7,278

Financial Liabilities
Trade & other payables 	 2,550 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 2,550

	 2,550 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 2,550

Net Maturity 	 3,179 	 582 	 962 	 5 	 4,728

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY, 2011

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY, 2011

	 	                        Year ended 31 July, 2011 		                                  Year ended 31 July, 2010
	

Financial Assets
Held for trading investments 

   Listed Income Securities 	 1,312 	 - 	 - 	 1,312 	 1,263 	 - 	 - 	 1,263

Available for sale investments

   Unlisted investments 	 - 	 - 	 6 ,700 	 6,700 	 - 	 - 	 7,769 	 7,769

	 1,312 	 - 	 6,700 	 8,012 	 1,263 	 - 	 7,769 	 9,032
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		  2011 	 2010
		  $000 	 $000

Guarantees - Throughbred Racing Productions (Vic) Pty Ltd 	 2,794 	 2,794

		  2,794 	 2,794

		  2011 	 2010
		  $ 	 $

Amounts received or due and receivable by the Auditors of the Club for:
	 - audit of the financial report 	 61,800 	 60,000
Other services in relation to the Club:
	 - audit of Community Benefit Statement 	 1,500 	 1,500

		  63,300 	 61,500

12. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Key management personnel compensation

15. SEGMENT INFORMATION

16. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

13. AUDITORS REMUNERATION

14. related party disclosures

The Club has provided a Letter of Undertaking guaranteeing the obligations of  Thoroughbred Racing Productions (Vic) 
Pty Ltd in respect of finance facilities provided by Australia and New Zealand Banking Group Ltd.  At balance date, the 
guarantees provided were limited to $2,793,750 plus interest, costs and expenses.

All members of the Committee act in an honorary capacity and receive no remuneration for their services.

During the financial year members of the Committee conducted limited financial transactions with the Club.  All of 
these transactions were on normal commercial terms and conditions.

During the financial year the Club paid Directors and Officers Liability insurance premiums on behalf of the 
Committee and Officers of the Club.

During the financial year the Club conducted financial transactions with various related party entities.  All of these 
transactions were on normal terms and conditions.

Key management personnel compensation, included in the income statement and balance sheet of the Club, is as follows:

The Club operates in the thoroughbred horse racing industry.  All of the Club’s operations are undertaken within Australia.

The Club is not aware of any material events that have occurred subsequent to balance date.

*Consists primarily of statutory superannuation contributions.

			   2011 	 2010
			   $000 	 $000

Short-term employee benefits 	 1,184 	 1,236
Long-term benefits 	 27 	 37
Post-employment benefits* 	 93 	 89

			   1,303 	 1,362

The following parties are considered to be related parties of the Club:

• Members of the Committee who held office during the year ended 31 July, 2011, being:

• Mr R A Scarborough – Chairman	
• Mr M K Ralston – Vice-Chairman	
• Mr D C Casboult – Vice-Chairman	
• Mr B G Kruger - Treasurer
• Mrs K T Gillespie	

• Ms E Boling	
• Mr C A Opie	
• Mr D H Kobritz	
• Mr J Blight	
• Mr M J Browell – by virtue of his office as Chief Executive

• Sport 927, in which the Club has a 10.72% interest
• ThoroughVisioN Pty Ltd, in which the Club has a 12.5% interest
• Thoroughbred Racing Productions (Vic) Pty Ltd in which the Club has a 25% interest.
• Australian Prices’ Network in which the Club has a 16.67% interest
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COMMITTEE’S DECLARATION
TO THE MEMBERS OF MOONEE VALLEY RACING CLUB INC.

Independent auditor’s report
TO THE MEMBERS OF MOONEE VALLEY RACING CLUB INC.

We, the undersigned, do hereby certify on behalf of the Committee that, in our opinion, the accompanying financial 
report, set out on pages 43 to 65 is drawn up so as to present fairly the financial position of Moonee Valley Racing 
Club Inc. as at 31 July, 2011, and the results of its operations for the year then ended in accordance with Australian 
Accounting Standards.

R A Scarborough 	 B G Kruger 	M  J Browell
Chairman 	T reasurer 	 Chief Executive

Independent auditor’s report to the members of Moonee Valley Racing Club Inc.

We have audited the accompanying financial report of Moonee Valley Racing Club Inc. which comprises the statement of financial 
position as at 31 July 2011, and the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash 
flows for the year ended on that date, a summary of significant accounting policies, other explanatory notes and the Committee of 
Management’s declaration.

Committee of Management Responsibility for the Financial Report
The Club’s Committee of Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in accordance 
with Australian Accounting Standards, the Associations Incorporation Act (Vic) and the Club’s Rules and for such internal controls 
as the Committee of Management determine are necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that is free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. In Note 2, the Committee of Management also state that the financial 
report, comprising the financial statements and notes, complies with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the 
International Accounting Standards Board.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance 
with Australian Auditing Standards. Those standards require that we comply with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit 
engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report is free from 
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial report. The 
procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, 
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal controls relevant to the entity’s preparation 
and fair presentation of the financial report in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal controls. An audit also includes evaluating 
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Committee of 
Management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Independence
In conducting our audit we have complied with the independence requirements of the Australian professional accounting bodies.

Opinion
In our opinion:
(a) 	 the financial report presents fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Moonee Valley Racing Club Inc. as of 31 July 	
	 2011 and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Australian Accounting 		
	 Standards, the Associations Incorporation Act (Vic) and the Club’s Rules; and

(b) 	 the financial report also complies with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International 		
	 Accounting Standards Board.

Ernst & Young
Melbourne
27 September 2011
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of Moonee Valley Racing 
Club Inc. 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial report of Moonee Valley Racing Club Inc. which comprises 
the statement of financial position as at 31 July 2011, and the statement of comprehensive income, 
statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year ended on that date, a summary of 
significant accounting policies, other explanatory notes and the Committee of Management’s declaration. 
 
 
Committee of Management Responsibility for the Financial Report 
The Club’s Committee of Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial report in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards, the Associations Incorporation Act 
(Vic) and the Club’s Rules and for such internal controls as the Committee of Management determine are 
necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that is free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. In Note 2, the Committee of Management also state that the financial 
report, comprising the financial statements and notes, complies with International Financial Reporting 
Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board. 

 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit.  We conducted our 
audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Those standards require that we comply with 
relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial report is free from material misstatement.  
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial report. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, we consider internal controls relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of 
the financial report in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal controls. An audit 
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates made by the Committee of Management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial report. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion. 
 
 
Independence 
In conducting our audit we have complied with the independence requirements of the Australian 
professional accounting bodies.   
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